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KING ISLAND

Midway between Victoria and mainland 
Tasmania, 120 kilometres or forty-five 
minutes flying in either direction, the 
Island has become an ideal destination 
for a weekend escape.

The Island, which is 64 kilometres north 
to south, and 27 kilometres east to west, 
has a population of approximately 1,600 
permanent residents, of which 800 reside 
in the township of Currie which is situated 
on the west coast. There are two other 
towns, Naracoopa on the east coast, and 
Grassy to the south east.

From our little paradise, some of 
Australia’s finest natural foods are 
produced. We are probably best known 
for the production of fine beef, superior 
dairy produce, magnificent seafood and 
premium rain water products. King Island 
Dairies, with its award-winning cheeses, 
the abundant seafood and King Island 
Beef have all helped to establish King 
Island’s reputation for fine foods.

Tourism is thriving with the two new 
internationally recognised golf courses at 
Ocean Dunes and Cape Wickham. 

The Kelp Industry is a major part of the 
Island economy with tourism becoming 
the growth industry in recent times.

The Island offers a great number of 
attractions and activities which include 
visits to the museum, lighthouses, 
Sealers’ Wall, Calcified Forest, pheasant 
shooting and mutton bird seasons, horse 
racing, the King Island Imperial 20 - a 32 
kilometre coast to coast foot race, the 
Festival of King Island, the King Island 
Long Table Festival, recreational fishing, 
diving, bushwalking, beachcombing and 
much more.

Tourists appreciate the Island’s natural 
attractiveness, exquisite cuisine, the 
surfing, fishing, challenging golf course, 
maritime history and the relaxed way of 
life.

King Island has an interesting history, 
commencing with its discovery in 1798. 
Its geographic location in Bass Strait 
has resulted in a rich maritime history 
associated often with shipwrecks and 
tragedies that are well documented.
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At the western entrance to Bass Strait lies an 
idyllic place known as King Island. An Island rich 
in history, with shipwrecks, lighthouses and 
jagged reefs, bountiful with long stretching sandy 
beaches and lush green pasture.



MAYOR’S 
MESSAGE
This is the first time Tasmania has had 
all in, all out Local government elections 
and therefore the first time the whole 
Council can take responsibility for the 
full term. Very early on, I pointed this out 
to Councillors, and suggested that this 
was an opportunity to heal some of the 
wounds from previous administrations 
and come together in a positive way. So 
although this is an annual report I’d like 
to take the opportunity to reflect over the 
past four years.

Having the whole 
organisation functioning 
as one was key to bringing 
about significant change. 
To achieve this, both staff and Councillors 
contributed to the creation  of an agreed 
set of values and a vision. As a result of 
this and other measures, the organisation 
is functioning vastly better now than it 
was four years ago. 

Soon after we were all elected the 
Deputy Mayor and I were involved in the 
recruitment of an external audit panel. 
This panel was mandated by the minister 
for local government and as a result of its 
inception we have benefited greatly from 
their guidance. Their role is to oversee 
the governance of the organisation, and 
while they have highlighted many things 
that needed to be fixed, they have also 
acknowledged substantial improvement 
across a wide range of areas.

In leading the organisation since October 
2014, we as Councillors have had 84 
workshops, 44 ordinary meetings, 12 
special meetings, thousands of emails 
and phone calls. The organisation has 
sealed and/or resheeted 47.189 kms of 
roads, including the construction plus seal 
of Cape Wickham Road, the completion 
of Old Grassy Road and the inclusion of a 
much improved South Road intersection. 
Council’s, however, are much more than 
roads, rates and rubbish with just some 
of the many other achievements being: 
• Airport terminal upgrade
• Established a Destination Action Plan
• Town Hall roof replacement and 

painting & kitchen
• Negotiated the acquisition of the 

Boat House & Les Ross Park
• Worked with the State Government 

on the maintenance of a shipping 
service

Despite these achievements and a 
whole host more over the past four 
years it feels like there has been endless 
negativity from a small group of people 
in the community - these detractors 
may want to consider the way in which 
they think creating change is carried out. 
Some of the biggest stone throwers will 
not return our phone calls, nor will they 
meet with us to discuss their issues.  
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OUR VISION
King Island – ‘A place of opportunity, lifestyle and beauty’.

OUR VALUES
These are the values that will guide our choice and behaviour as we seek to 

implement our vision for the area:

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES
The King Island Council will be known for its Visionary Thinking 
and Strategic Leadership. We are a Council with a shared vision 

who work with and for the local community. We work by the 
following principles:

Cohesive 
decision making 

– with the 
strength to 

review decisions

Valuing our 
independent 
views – and 

recognising that 
healthy 

respectful 
debate can lead 

to better 
decisions

Being agile, 
flexible and 

professional in 
responding to 

emerging issues

Driving 
decisions 
through 

informed    
input and 

engagement 
with 

stakeholders

Communicating 
decisions in an 

open and 
transparent way

Being ‘one team’ 
and standing by 
group decisions

EQUITY 
amongst all

UNITY
We are in this 

together

RECOGNITION
appreciation and 

acknowledgement

COMMUNICATION 
and consultation

OUR WORKPLACE 
environment - A 

great place to work

Executive 
Assistant

Mayor Duncan 
McFie 

General 
Manager 

Councillor Megan Chivers 

Councillor Kirsty Russell 

Councillor David Munday 

Councillor Jim Cooper 

Senior 
Staff 

Senior 
Staff 

Senior 
Staff 

Senior 
Staff 

Councillor Royce Conley 

 Councillor Jim Benn 

Councillor Ira Cooke 

Councillor David Bowling 
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Others write anonymous letters to the 
editor, they create petitions to have us 
removed, they misrepresent facts on 
social media - all of which appears to be 
designed to whip the community into a 
negative frenzy against Council - and for 
what? My sense is that the vast majority 
of the community are sick of this cycle 
of negativity and can recognise that our 
Council is really working hard for the 
community and that every Councillor 
wants to leave King Island better than we 
found it. Also I think most folks know that 
negativity just breeds more negativity 
and that if you really want to know the 
facts - you talk or write to us directly, 
attend a meeting, lodge an issue on our 
new website or phone a Councillor.

Over the past 12 months we have seen 
the retirement of David Laugher who, 
in his capacity as General Manager, 
reset much of the internal workings of 
the organisation. Thereafter we were 
fortunate to have two interim General 
Managers, Robert Ball and Brian Barrett 
who brought with them a great deal 
of knowledge and experience, and 
contributed in a major way to the overall 
organisational health of Council. On 
the back of their work our new General 
Manager, Troy Brice, has really catapulted 
us forward on a whole host of fronts, with 
much more still to come.

With Troy’s guidance, Council has 
consciously put a budget forward which, 
although is in deficit, solves many of the 
issues that have been hanging around 
the neck of the organisation, particularly 
from a compliance perspective, which 
given the facilities we manage, forms a 
very large part of our work. The budget 
also puts in place money to plan for the 
long term on multiple fronts - something 
that we have been lacking. 

As we plan for our future, you can expect 
to see greater community engagement 
- something we have been improving 
upon, along with our communications. 
With the introduction of regular local 
radio interviews, utilisation of a Council 
Facebook page and much more, we have 
made significant inroads in this space. 
On top of all of this we recently held our 
first community town hall meeting, with 
another to follow shortly as we set our 
future direction together.

Sometimes the wheels in local 
government don’t turn as fast as we 
would all like but that is often because 
we have to consult, synthesise, debate, 
decide, plan and find money to carry out 
a desired outcome. 
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As one example, the recently completed 
township master planning process 
necessitated we find the money for robust 
engagement, find the right people to help 
us bring it together and finally, come up 
with a plan. A plan we now have, with the 
next step focused on finding the money 
to carry some of the bigger projects out. 
First actions have been completed, with 
more projects budgeted in the FY18/19 
and others to be incorporated into long 
term strategic plans. 

Planning such as this is imperative, 
especially given the significant economic 
challenges presented by the likes of 
the airport and our Island’s waste 
management. Fortunately, we developed 
an airport master plan in FY17/18 and 
have funded a review of our waste 
management strategy which will guide 
us in developing cost effective and 
environmentally conscious thinking into 
the future.

Finding money is something that takes 
time and effort. Around two thirds of 
our income comes from the State and 
Federal government, but there are also 
competitive grants for which we can and 
do apply. In the last year alone we have 
received $385,000 to fund 7 projects 
under a variety of government and not-
for-profit grant programs, which has had 
a positive effect on what we can deliver to 
the community.

Finally I would like to acknowledge all 
of the positive contribution, time and 
effort put in by my fellow Councillors and 
staff. In particular, I would like thank the 
Deputy Mayor for his support over the full 
duration of our term. I know for a fact that 
we have completed our term leaving the 
organisation in far better shape than we 
found it. I hope that the next Council will 
be able to build on the vast body of work 
we as a community have all contributed 
to. 

Duncan Mcfie
Mayor
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GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
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Create a sustainable, 
resilient and 
adaptable community; 
through utilizing 
community 
development 
strategies

Support our population 
and future growth 
through public 
infrastructure, services, 
land use and development 
strategies that create a 
connected, sustainable 
and accessible community

Achieve economic 
viability through 
facilitating economic 
development that 
supports appropriate 
and sustainable growth

GOVERNANCE & 
ORGANISATIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT

NATURAL 
ENVIRONMENT

COMMUNITY 
WELLBEING

INFRASTRUCTURE & 
FACILITIES

TOURISM, 
MARKETING & 
EVENTS

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT

Sustainably promote, 
develop and support the 
growth of King Island’s 
tourism

Our Island’s unique 
natural and built 
environment are 
sustainably respected 
and cared for

Provide high quality 
professional governance, 
advocacy and leadership 
together with effective 
administration of Council 
resources



We can improve our waste management 
practices.  We can improve our 
information sharing.  We can improve 
our strategic planning.   We can do better.  
We will do better.

The introduction to the new permanent 
General Manager by way of a series of 
community meetings in April 2018, was 
just one example of our increasing focus 
on community engagement.  Seeking 
advice from respected community 
leaders and supporting key stakeholder 
groups will see this process amplified in 
FY18/19.

Your community Council needs the active 
and positive support of the community 
to establish the best possible Vision for 
King Island and to assist in mapping the 
pathway to achieve that vision together.  
United and positively focused, the King 
Island community can establish a holistic 
and well perceived community that is 
recognised and rewarded with funding 
to support improved services.   The King 
Island brand has many facets to it.  It must 
be protected and reinforced in a positive 
manner, constantly, by all stakeholders.

Troy Brice
General Manager
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These objectives as outlined in our Annual 
Plan are indeed worthy aspirational goals 
that a community Council should strive 
for.  As the second smallest Council in 
Tasmania and one of the smallest Council 
organisations in Australia, however, 
matching resources to core activities 
and responsibilities is a very difficult 
task.  Without adequate funding or the 
appropriate manpower and machinery, 
the task becomes even more complex.  

Your community’s Council has been 
under resourced for some time, with 
cut-backs in the past and vacancies 
proving difficult to fill with suitably skilled 
staff.  Add to this the unique experience 
of four General Managers in one year 
and it has been an unsettling time for 
Council staff and for the community.  
Key to improving Council’s service to the 
community is a focus on internal stability, 
on improving staff morale and on the 
conscious development of a positive work 
environment.

At its June meeting, Council commended 
staff on the “best budget process 
experienced”.  With over 300 hours of 
staff time invested in deeply analysing last 
year’s budget and the historical financial 
performance of Council, the result was 
not only a significant improvement 
in transparency of reporting, but also 
the  identification of specific areas for 
improvement. We can improve our 
workplace safety performance.  We can 
improve our environmental compliance.  
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COUNCILLORS

Councillor Ira Cooke
Member since 7 November 2017

Mayor Duncan McFie
Member since October 2005

Committee Membership
Brand KI Management Group
KI Airport Advisory Committee

KI Recreation Complex Committee
Cradle Coast Authority

KI Scheelite – Consultative Committee
Local Government Association of 

Tasmania

Deputy Mayor Jim Cooper
Member since October 2014

Committee Membership
KI Airport Advisory Committee

Cradle Coast Authority 
KI Shipping Group

Councillor Royce Conley
Member since March 1999

Committee Membership
TasWater

Local Government Association 
of Tasmania

Councillor Jim Benn
Member since October 2014

Committee Membership
KI Cultural Centre Advisory 

Committee
KI Historical Society

KI Tourism Incorporated (KITI)

Councillor David Bowling
Member since October 2014

Committee Membership
KI Tourism Incorporated (KITI)

Councillor David Munday
Member since October 2014

Committee Membership
Brand KI Management Group

KI Historical Society
KI Recreation Complex Committee

KI Shipping Group

Councillor Kirsty Russell
Member since October 2014

Committee Membership
KI Sporting Management 

Committee
KI Natural Resource 

Management Group (KINRM)
Naracoopa Sand Mine – 
Consultative Committee

Committee memberships 
are as at 30 June 2018

Councillor Megan Chivers
Member since 20 June 2017
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SENIOR COUNCIL STAFF

Troy Brice
General Manager

Appointed April 2018

Directorate Responsibilities:
Tourism

Community Engagement
Business Development
Economic Development
Development Services

Zoe Behrendt
Director Corporate & Community Services

Appointed April 2012

Responsibilities:
Corporate Services
Human Resources

Community Development
Governance

Financial Management

Tony Melis
Director Infrastructure & Services

Appointed December 2015

Responsibilities:
Airport

Environmental Compliance 
Council Assets

Transport
Quarries

Ranger Services



ORGANISATION CHART
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Executive
Assistant

Economic 
Development 

Officer

Director 
Corporate & 
Community 

Service

Director 
Infrastructure & 

Services

Development 
Services 
Officer

Communications, 
Tourism &      

Events Officer

Team Leader 
Maintenance

Team Leader 
Construction

Ranger

Airport 
Reporting 

Officer

Airport 
Reporting 

Officer

Labourer Parks 
& Gardens

Labourer

Labourer

Labourer

Labourer

Labourer

Plant
Operator

Plant
Operator

Plant
Operator

Plant
Operator

Plant
Operator

Plant
Operator

Technical 
Compliance 

Officer

Accounts

Human 
Resources

Project
Officer

Customer
Service

Assets & 
Projects 
Engineer

Depot 
Officer

Deputy 
Director 

Corporate & 
Community 

Service

Accountant

General 
Manager
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Currie Skatepark Upgrade 
The much anticipated skatepark upgrade 
took place in May, with use of the facility 
having increased significantly since 
completion.

King Island Council Rebrand 
King Island Council re-launched its Brand 
during the year and in doing so reinstated 
its Coat of Arms. Granted in 1973 by the 
College of Arms in London it features 
the Island’s most significant fauna as 
well as making reference to some of the 
community’s largest economic drivers.

Road Sealing
The construction and seal of Cape 
Wickham Road, completion of Old Grassy 
Road and the South Road and Old Grassy 
Road intersection were just some of 
the additions to the sealing program in 
FY17/18.



Image Library Development
A grant from the Department of State Growth for the development 
of an Island wide employee attraction and retention campaign also 
facilitated the purchase of an image library.  Kramer Photography, 
who’s images were purchased have over 20 years’ experience, with 
their work featuring in a number of award-winning destination 
marketing campaigns.

General Manager Appointment
Council was delighted to confirm the 
appointment of Troy Brice in April 2018, 
with his background in leadership and 
management an excellent fit for the 
organisational requirements.
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Refurbishment of Main Street 
Toilets

This budgeted upgrade has significantly 
improved the visual appeal and access to 
this Main Street facility.



Increased Transparency of 
Communication

Much effort has been put into increasing 
the frequency and transparency of 
communication with the community over 
FY17/18, with the utilisation of a Council 
Facebook page, rates inserts, press 
ads, radio interviews and much of the 
groundwork for a new website completed 
during this period.

Development of Grassy 
Playground 

Following the decommission of the old 
playground, funding was sought and 
awarded for the redevelopment of the 
Grassy Playground.
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Township Master Planning 
The development of masterplans for 
the Island’s three main townships was 
completed in FY17/18 and will inform 
Council’s investment over the coming years.
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Installation of Depot Fence
The street side appeal of the Council Depot 
was significantly improved following the 
installation of a paling fence.

Policy Development
The introduction of a Debt Recovery Policy 
aims to reduce the amount of monies 
owed to Council, minimise risk of bad debt 
and assist debtors in financial stress and/
or hardship, whilst complying with the Act 
and By-Law.

Crushing
20,000 cubic metres from Reekara Quarry 
and 20,000 cubic metres from Pearshape 
Quarry was crushed during FY17/18 to 
facilitate Council’s road sealing program as 
well as private works.
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LAND USE 
AND PLANNING

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS
44 development applications were received during the financial year, with one application 
withdrawn and no refusals issued. These numbers are consistent with the previous financial 
year. A breakdown of the types of development applications received during the FY 17/18 
year are provided below.

APPLICATION TYPE No.

Dwelling and Dwelling Additions

General Residential Zone 0

Low Density, Rural Residential, Environmental Living & Village zones 2

Rural Resource 8

Residential Outbuildings

General Residential Zone 1

Low Density, Rural Residential, Environmental Living & Village zones 1

Rural Resource 2

Agricultural Sheds 5

Subdivision and Boundary Adjustments 3

Multiple Dwelling Development 1

Commercial 1

Tourism (including visitor accommodation) 7

Industrial & Utilities 11

Other 2

Total Applications 44

BUILDING APPLICATIONS
The number of building applications and notifications for the financial year was 28.

APPLICATION TYPE No.

Dwelling 4

Dwelling Additions & Alterations 4

Outbuildings 3

Farm buildings 3

Visitor Accommodation 2

Commercial/Industrial 5

Misc. Structures 6

Demolition 1

Total 28



COMPLAINTS REGISTER

FY17/18
Under Section 339F Customer Service Charter (5) The general manager is to provide the council 
with a report at least once a year of the number and nature of complaints received.

A total of 55 complaints were received and addressed.
• Animal Control - 4 complaints about dogs
• Animal Control/ Health - 1 complaint from neighbour about pigs
• Buildings - 5 maintenance and cleaning issues
• Customer Service/Other - 1 complaint about contractor’s behaviour
• Waste Management - 2 complaints about public bin/waste disposal
• Weeds - 3 complaints
• Trees - 6 complaints 
• Health/ Buildings - 3 issues with public toilets
• Other - 4 complaints

 » 1 about a signage hazard; 
 » 1 about footpath obstruction; 
 » 1 about public noticeboard; 
 » 1 about Quarantine Bay boat ramp

• Parks/Recreation - 1 complaint about damage to lookout
• Roads - 25 complaints 

 » 15 about potholes; 
 » 3 about flooding/ blockages; 
 » 5 about roadsides needing clearing/ attention; 
 » 1 about dangerous corner; and 1 about road sign hazard.

4

3
26

13

54

11

25
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STATUTORY 
REPORTING 
REQUIREMENTS
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MEETING ATTENDANCE
SECTION 72(1) (CC)
 

Ordinary 
meeting

(possible 12)

Closed 
Council

(possible 6)

Council 
Workshop

(possible 17)

Special 
meeting

(possible 4)

Annual 
General 
Meeting

(possible 1)

Total 
attendance
(possible 40)

Councillors July 2017 – June 2018

Jim Benn 10 5 11 3 1 30

David 
Bowling

10 5 12 4 1 32

Megan 
Chivers

12 6 17 3 1 39

Royce Conley 12 6 14 4 1 37

Ira Cooke 8 4 11 0 1 24
*possible 24

Jim Cooper 9 4 16 3 1 33

Sally 
Haneveer

3 2 3 0 0 8
*possible 14

Duncan  
McFie

11 5 16 4 1 37

David 
Munday

12 6 15 4 1 38

Kirsty Russell 12 6 13 4 1 36

* Note:  Cr Sally Haneveer resigned on 18 October 2017 and Cr Ira Cooke was sworn in on      
7 November 2017.

ELECTED MEMBERS 
SECTION 72 (1) (CB)
Total allowances paid to Mayor, Deputy Mayor and Councillors during the FY17/18 were 
$110,415.72.

Under the Local Government Act Section 72 1(ba) & (bb) there were no code of conduct 
complaints during FY17/18.



18

GRANTS 
AND BENEFITS

Section 77 

King Island Council allocates annual 
funding and in-kind assistance to support 
community projects and programs 
that have a clear community benefit. 
Council determines its allocations during 
its budget deliberations and calls for 
applications in May each year.  

A total of $22,977 
was made available 
in FY17/18 for the 
following projects 
that involve and 
engage with our 
community.

ORGANISATIONS FUNDED IN FY17/18

FY17/18
$22,977

FY16/17
$12,500

FY15/16
$12,000

FY14/15
$20,098

FY13/14
$10,800

King Island 
Regional 
Development 
Organisation
For the purchase of 
photoshop software 
& headphones for 
the Online Access 
Centre

$580
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King Island 
Field 
Naturalists 
Club Inc
For the 130th 
anniversary of the 
expedition to KI by 
Field Naturalists 
Club of Victoria

$2,500

King Island 
Community 
Radio
For the purchase of 
a transmitter

$2,458
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POKI
For the production, 
printing & 
distribution of 
a POKI Market 
Brochure

$300

“We have received very favourable 
comments from Islanders and tourists, 
and it has resulted in an increase in 
exposure and sales”   POKI



Country 
Women’s 
Association
For the replacement 
of two wooden front 
doors at the CWA 
Hall

$2,500

Star of the 
Sea Catholic 
Church
Purchase of a 
sunbeam frypan

$139

King Island 
School 
Association
For the purchase 
and installation of 
a motorised pool 
cover for the Currie 
Swimming Pool

$2,500
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King Island 
Natural 
Resource 
Management 
Group
For filming, editing 
& production of 
documentary ‘Wings 
on King Island’

$2,500
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The film is a very professional promotion of 
King Island and the Wings on King project, 
which uses bird surveys as a means of 
evaluating environmental health”  
King Island Natural 
Resource Management Group

King Island 
Childcare & 
Early Learning 
Centre Inc
For the purchase of 
resources for the Out 
of Hours School Care 
Program (OHSC)

$2,500
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Phoenix Community 
House Inc
For the purchase of equipment for 
the ‘Music & Mindfulness’Program

$2,500

Grassy Club Inc
For the repairs to windows 
& ceiling and secure the 
storeroom and woodshed

$2,000
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King Island Boat Club
For the junior sailing training program & participation in the Stonehaven cup

$2,500



PROCUREMENT 
REPORTING  
The following procurement reporting is in accordance with sections 13 and 17 of the Code 
for Tenders and Contracts adopted 15 September 2015.

Code for Tenders and Contracts – Section 13.1 - As per Regulation 29.(1) of the Local 
Government (General) Regulations 2015, Council is required to report details of any contract 
for the supply or provision of goods or services valued at or above the currently legislated 
prescribed amount of $250,000.  

COUNCIL 
RESOLUTION NO

DESCRIPTION OF 
CONTRACT

PERIOD OF 
CONTRACT

PERIOD OF 
OPTIONS FOR 

CONTRACT 
EXTENSION

TENDER VALUE 
EXCLUDING GST $

BUSINESS NAME 
OF SUCCESSFUL 
CONTRACTOR

BUSINESS 
ADDRESS OF 
SUCCESSFUL 

CONTRACTOR

132/17 Produce Quarry 
Crushed Rock 8 weeks No option for 

contract extension $614,140.00 Wack’s Crushing 
Pty Ltd

490 West 
Mooreville Road 
Burnie  TAS  7320

157/17 Provision of 
Cleaning Services 3 years 3 years $252,585.00 King Island 

Services Pty Ltd
11 Myrtle Street 

Grassy  TAS  7256

Tenders and Contracts Policy – Section 13.2 - As per Regulation 29.(1)(c) of the Local 
Government (General) Regulations 2015, Council is required to report details of any extension 
of a contract, whereby Council agreed to extend a contract by an absolute majority and the 
pre-existing contract did not specify extensions. 

There have been no extensions of contract under this section for the period 1 July 2017 – 30 
June 2018.

Code for Tenders and Contracts – Section 13.3 & 13.4 - As per Regulation 29.(2) of the Local 
Government (General) Regulations 2015, Council is required to report all instances where 
non-application of the public tender process has occurred for the supply or provision of 
goods or services valued at or above the currently legislated prescribed amount of $250,000 
in the following circumstances:

• Non-application of the public tender process as a result of an emergency, where in the 
opinion of the General Manager, there was insufficient time to invite tenders for the 
goods and services required in that emergency; or

• Non-application of the public tender process because Council agreed by absolute 
majority, that a satisfactory result would not have been achieved in tenders were invited 
because of:

1. Extenuating circumstances;
2. The remoteness of the locality; or
3. The unavailability of competitive or reliable tenderers.

• All other instances of non-application of public tender process where a public tender 
process was not used and reasonably should have been.
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There have been no instances of non-application of the public tender process for the period 
1 July 2017 – 30 June 2018.

Code for Tenders and Contracts – Section 13.6 - As per Regulation 29.(3) of the Local 
Government (General) Regulations 2015, Council is required to report details of any contract 
for the supply or provision of goods or services valued at or exceeding $100,000 but less than 
$250,000, that is entered into or extended in the current financial year.  Additionally, Council 
will report whether the procurement method used is compliant with the Code, and if not, 
reasons as to why. 

DESCRIPTION OF 
CONTRACT

PERIOD OF 
CONTRACT

PERIOD OF 
OPTIONS FOR 

CONTRACT 
EXTENSION

CONTRACT VALUE 
EXCLUDING GST $

BUSINESS NAME 
OF SUCCESSFUL 
CONTRACTOR

BUSINESS 
ADDRESS OF 
SUCCESSFUL 

CONTRACTOR

WAS 
PROCUREMENT 

METHOD 
COMPLIANT? (IF 

NOT, REASON 
FOR NON-

COMPLIANCE)

Insurance 30/6/2017-
30/6/2018

No options for 
extension $148,125.00 Marsh Pty Ltd

60 Cameron St 
Launceston TAS 

7250
Yes

Supply of bitumen 10/01/2018 – 
30/06/2018

Purchase 
agreement only – 

no formal contract

$218,618
(original estimate 

$236,025)

Puma Energy 
(Australia) 

Bitumen Pty Ltd

365 MacArthur 
Ave Hamilton  

QLD  4007
Yes

Freight for 
bitumen

13/01/2018-
30/06/2018

No formal contract 
– sole freight 

supplier
$136,929 Jim McKenzie 

Agencies
2 Shaw St Currie 

TAS  7256 Yes

Code for Tenders and Contracts – Section 17. As per Act 333B – In addition to the public 
reporting requirements as per the Regulations, section 17 of the Code requires the General 
Manager to report to Council all other purchases of goods and services over the value of 
$50,000 (exclusive of GST), specifically whether the procurement method used is compliant 
with the Code, and if not, reasons as to why.

DATE OF PURCHASE 
OF GOODS/SERVICES

DESCRIPTION OF THE 
GOODS/SERVICES 

ACQUIRED

VALUE OF GOODS/
SERVICES ACQUIRED 

EXCLUDING GST $

NAME OF 
SUPPLIER

PROCESS USED FOR THE 
ACQUISION OF GOODS/

SERVICES

WAS PROCUREMENT 
METHOD 

COMPLIANT? (IF NOT, 
REASON FOR NON-

COMPLIANCE)

05/10/17 Cardboard Shredder $56,700 Waste Initiatives Request for quotes Yes

04/12/17 Extended support 
service $99,273 MAGIQ Software 

Ltd Request for proposals Yes 

04/12/17

Engagement of Acting 
General Managers – 
Robert Ball & Brian 

Barratt

$79,411 Blackadder 
Associates Pty Ltd

Direct arrangement 
with firm undertaking 
recruitment of General 
Manager.  Quotes not 

required from alternative 
providers.  Original 

engagement for $53,430 
extended in line with 

General Manager 
recruitment process

Yes

01/02/18 Bobcat $51,000 William Adams 
Pty Ltd Request for quotes Yes

16/03/18 Airport Master Plan $59,710 Aviation Projects 
Pty Ltd Expression of Interest Yes

24/04/18 Airport freight facility 
– purchase of shed $58,588 Shed Bonanza Request for quotes Yes

01/03/18-30/04/18 Bulk supply of 
Kerosene $61,347

Tasmanian Ports 
Corporation Pty 

Ltd

Direct arrangement 
with local importer 
of dangerous goods 

following enquires with 
off-island suppliers.

Not technically 
compliant however 

safest and most cost 
effective expedient 
solution – first year 
using kerosene for 
sealing instead of 

diesel
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ACT 1993

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ACT 1993

Section 72A
Council reports no disputes with the Australian Taxation Office during the financial year 
relating to compliance with GST law.

Sections 72(1) (cd),
72(4) and 72(5)
Public Health Statement

Section 72(1)(ab) of the Local Government Act 1993 requires a statement of the Council’s 
goals and objective in relation to public health activities to be included in the Annual Report.

Council currently engages an Environmental Health Officer contractor for 0.06 per week. 
Council’s Public Health and Environmental Health programs address a range of functions 
under the Local Government Act 1993, Public Health Act 1997, Food Act 2003.

Operational statistics reflecting core environmental health activities undertaken include:

ACTIVITY TOTAL COMMENTS

Public Health Act 1997

Mass gatherings 0

Private water supplier licences 15 Commercial businesses providing water from tanks, bores etc.

Drinking water carting licences 1 Drinking water carters

Water complaints investigated 0 Water quality from a private supplier

Regulated systems 0 E.g cooling towers

Registered Health Risk Activity 1 Includes tattooing, piercing, acupuncture etc

Recreational waters – natural 0 Water quality testing

Recreational waters – pools & spas 0 Water quality testing

Immunisations No of doses administered through Ochre Health

Food Act 2003

Registered food businesses 44 Annual licences

Registered mobile food businesses 2 Annual statewide licences

Temporary food businesses 14 Events and one-off occasions

Prosecutions 0

Infringement notices 0

Food complaints investigations 0

Council provided access through its web site to free certified online food handling training 
in FY17/18.
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
ACT 1993

PUBLIC INTEREST 
DISCLOSURE ACT 2002

MISCELLANEOUS

Sections 72(1) (cd),
72(4) and 72(5) cont.
Remuneration

Council is to include within its Annual Report a statement relating to the total remuneration 
paid to employees of the Council who hold positions designated by it as being senior 
positions. Total remuneration includes the salary paid, contributions to superannuation, 
fringe benefits and any other allowances.

Senior management total remuneration for FY17/18: $497,719

Total remuneration includes salary, superannuation contributions, fringe benefits and any 
other allowances. 

$140,000 - $160,000 - 2 employees
$60,001 - $80,000 - 1 employee
$40,001 - $60,000 - 1 employee
$20,001 - $40,000 - 2 employees

Note: Throughout the financial year, some positions were filled by multiple people. The remuneration 
for these positions has been combined.  

(For further clarification please see pg 49 of the Fin Report).

Section 86
In accordance with Section 86(a) of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2002 Council’s Public 
Interest Disclosure Policy can be found on the Council’s website.

For FY17/18 Council has nothing to report under Section 86(b-i) of the Public Interest 
Disclosure Act 2002.

No land was donated by Council pursuant to Section 177 of the Local Government Act 1993.



ANNUAL PLAN
2017-2018

Year Two
King Island Council Annual Plan FY17/18 - Year Two - Fourth Quarterly Progress Report    
Prepared by: Corporate and Community Services

1. COMMUNITY WELLBEING
Create a sustainable, resilient and adaptable community; through utilising community 
development strategies.

1.1 OBJECTIVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
To identify, improve and support community development 
strategies that generate benefits for the community of King 
Island. 

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Corporate and Community Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

1.1.1 Investigate 
competing 
demands for 
forecasting and 
responding 
to emerging 
community needs.

1. By 
September

2017

2. By 
January 
2018

Links with 
1.2.3

1.Based on the 
community needs 
assessment develop a 
plan, that will inform 
how to address the 
needs.

2. Implement plan

TDS 1.4, 2.1 and 3

A new community 
engagement strategy has 
been introduced, with the 
launch of Community Town 
Hall Events.  Community 
input will be increasingly 
sought as we map a 
way forward with the 
development of a 10+ year 
strategic plan in FY18/19.

CTE

1.1.2 Encourage 
population stability 
and growth 
by facilitating 
opportunities to 
attract identified 
residential 
development and 
services.

1. On-going

2.February 
2018 as per 
the DAP 

1. Identify and 
promote residential 
and dwelling type 
demand opportunities 

2. Develop an 
investment strategy 
for accommodation

3. Publicise the 
opportunities to 
internal and external 
stakeholders 

Funding applications 
submitted in October 
(Regional Jobs & 
Investment Packages) and 
December (Building Better 
Regions Fund) to build 
accommodation for lease 
to large-scale employers 
and developers.

Discussions underway with 
DHHS on a partnership 
approach to mitigating 
the lack of residential 
accommodation.

An investment guide for 
local landowners was 
distributed to all residents 
and ratepayers in March to 
promote development of 
residential housing to meet 
the growing need.

EDO
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

1.1.3 Build and support 
our community’s 
capacity to provide 
services, programs, 
and events that 
are responsive to 
community need.

1.By 
September 
2017

2.By June 
2018

1.Identified need from 
community (1.1.1)

2. Revision of Council 
grants, programs, and 
processes 

Timeline will need to be 
revised due to temporary 
staff vacancy.

DCCS

1.2 OBJECTIVE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
To engage with our community through collaborative 
consultation, information sharing and seeking input that informs 
our decisions

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Corporate and Community Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

1.2.3 Work collaboratively 
with all levels of 
Government and 
Non-Government 
Organisations 
(NGO’s) agencies 
to address 
and advocate 
the emerging 
community needs.

On-going 1. Based on 
Community Needs 
Assessment

2.Facilitation of 
activities that 
provide two defined 
businesses and 
investment outcomes 
for King Island per 
annum 

3. Review

2. Currently finalising a 
Business Opportunities 
Prospectus in partnership 
with member organisations 
of the DAP Leadership 
Group, for distribution 
to King Island residents 
in the first instance, and 
subsequently be made 
available to off-island 
business investors 

EDO

1.2.4 Provide connections 
within the 
community for 
young people to 
remain engaged 
through education 
and employment 
opportunities. 

Annually 

August each 
year

1.Continue to build 
relationship with 
local businesses, to 
facilitate opportunities 
for students from the 
KIDHS

2.Identify apprentices, 
traineeships and skills 
gaps from businesses 
(Utilise the King 
Island Chamber of 
Commerce – King 
Island Workforce 
Capability Study – 
Final 8 Feb 2017, RSC 
Tourism and The Work 
Lab)

3. Identify further 
education 
opportunities 

Foundation for Rural 
Regional Renewal grant 
received for on-island 
hospitality training. Cert III 
in Hospitality to commence 
mid-July 2018, with 
completion by year end.

Customer Service 
Traineeship at Council 
funded for 2018/19.

DCCS
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2.1 OBJECTIVE COUNCIL ASSETS
Review and develop plans and processes with relevant 
stakeholders 

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY General Manager

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.1.1 Review the King 
Island Recreation 
Plan 2008 and King 
Island Strategy 
Plan 2008, prior to 
making decisions 
on existing and 
new community 
infrastructure, 
assets and to 
inform land use 
planning.

By 
December 
2017

Strategy Plan 2008

1. Review

2. Engage with 
Community 

3. Develop new plans

TDS 3.1 +3.2.2

Ongoing

Progress has been 
impacted by work required 
for the transition of the 
existing interim planning 
scheme to the state-wide 
scheme

DSO

By June 
2018

Recreation Plan 2008

1. Review

2. Engage with 
Community 

3. Develop new plan 

Funded through BBRF grant 
in 2018/19.

DCCS

2.1.2 Revise strategies 
and activities for 
waste management 
including the 
collection, recycling, 
and landfill 
management. 

1. By 
December 
2017

2. On-going

1. Implementation of 
plan and strategies, 
including landfill 
and transfer station 
management 

2. On-going review 

Physical changes to 
Transfer Station completed 
and accepted by the EPA 
for compliance.

Cardboard shredder 
installed and working, the 
shredder is also designed 
to shred plastic bottles and 
drums.

Recycling Strategies under 
development for council 
consideration. 

DIS

2.1.3 Develop a business 
case rationale and 
policy for fees and 
charges that reflect 
a user pays model 
for equality. 

By June 
2018

1.Recommendations 
from the Recreation 
Plan and review

Reliant on Rec Plan review 
item 2.1.1

DCCS
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.1.4 Maintain 
Council assets 
in accordance 
with relevant 
planning and policy 
documents.

1. By 
December 
2017

2. By June 
2018

3. On-going

1.Develop asset 
management plans, 
• Compliant 

with the Local 
Government Act 
1993

• Staged adoption 
to Council

• Linkages to 
both the budget 
and Long-Term 
Financial Plan

2. Implement asset 
management plans 
(both financial and 
physical management) 

3. Review

1. Asset Management 
Policies and Strategy 
has been drafted and 
submitted for Managers 
Review

2. Airport Asset 
Management Plan has 
been drafted based 
on National Asset 
Management Standards 
guidelines and can be used 
as a template for other 
Asset Management plan 
categories

Due to staff vacancies – 
timeframes will need to be 
reviewed.

DIS/

DCCS

2.1.5 To source funding 
to prepare ‘Master 
Plans to guide 
future growth and 
development for 
Currie, Grassy, and 
Naracoopa.

1. By July 
2017

2. By August 
2017

3.By 
September 
2017

4. By 
October 
2017

1. Community 
engagement

2. Draft plan

3. Plans adopted

4. Timeline developed 
for implementation 

TDS 3.1 and 3.2.2

 -  1. Currie

 -  2. Grassy

 -  3. Naracoopa

Priority projects and key 
themes extracted from 
Community feedback, with 
five projects included in 
the budget for FY2018-19. 
Final Township Master 
Plans to be presented to 
Council in Q1 of FY2018-19 
and subsequently used to 
inform strategic planning 
and funding applications.

EDO/

DSO

2.2 OBJECTIVE TRANSPORT
To advocate for fit for purpose freight and transport services (sea 
and air) for the island’s economy and accessibility 

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY General Manager

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.2.2 Advocate and 
seek funding for 
the Grassy port 
to be upgraded 
to increase port 
capacity.

By 2020 1. Seek funding 

KIPP 1

2. Engage with 
TasPorts, State, and 
Federal Governments 
to promote investment 
for the port 

Continuing engagement 
with the King Island 
Shipping Group, TasPorts 
and Bass Island Line. 

EDO
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.2.3 Advocate keeping 
freight, energy, 
and fuelling costs 
equitable for 
economic activity, 
which includes the 
freight equalization 
scheme.

On-going 1. Coordinate and 
drive responses 
identified through the 
demand analysis

1. Pending completion of 
the demand analysis in 
item 4.4.1

EDO

2.2.4 From the demand, 
analysis coordinate 
proactive planning 
and contingencies. 

(Please refer to 
strategy 4.1.1 of 
the King Island 
Strategic Plan 2016 
– 2020)

On-going 1. Articulate shifts in 
demand 

2. Drive shifts in 
demand 

3. Contingency plans 
are in place. 

1. Pending completion of 
the demand analysis in 
item 4.4.1

EDO

2.3 OBJECTIVE AIRPORT
To implement the Airport Master Plan

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Works and Engineering Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.3.1 Identify current 
and future needs 
in the context of 
vision and strategic 
priorities.  

By June 
2017

By June 
2019

1.  Analyse current/
future needs DAP 4.5 
and KIPP 

2. TDS 1.4.1/2, 1.4.6, 
1.5.1 and   3.3

Airport Master Plan update 
is underway, with the final 
report to be presented to 
Council for endorsement in 
August 2018. 

EDO
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.3.2 Secure funding for 
implementation 
of the four 
recommendations 
that require 
immediate 
attention.

Immediate 
to June 
2019

1. Develop an 
assessment of the 
projected useful life 
of the runway, along 
with recommended 
intervention strategies 
(which may include 
resealing)

1. Pavement strength 
testing and condition 
assessment scheduled 
for first half of FY2018-
19, funded by State 
Government.

EDO

2.RPT sealed apron 
parking extensions 
constructed

2. Some parking apron 
will be provided within 
the freight precinct 
project. Additional apron 
development to be advised 
in the Airport Master Plan.

3. Sealed freight 
precinct and buildings 
have been constructed 

3. Award of grant from 
Building Better Regions 
Fund will co-fund this 
project, with completion 
expected mid-2019.

4. Aviation fuel depot 
installed 

TDS 1.4.3.3 and DAP 
3.3

4. Commercial negotiations 
are ongoing with a private 
investor to build and 
operate this facility.

2.3.3 Review the business 
model for the 
airport to ensure 
that it is based 
on a commercial 
framework for its 
operation.

By 
December

2017

1. Review business 
model, to include 
axillary business 
opportunities in the 
surrounding area

Linked to 2.3.1

1. Revised airport fees 
and charges, calculated 
based on throughput 
and operational costs, to 
be implemented from 1 
October 2018. 

Potential for commercial 
development around 
airport to be considered in 
the Airport Master Plan.

EDO

2.3.4 Develop 
opportunities for a 
business precinct at 
the airport.

By June 
2019

TDS 1.4.4, 1.4.5 

1.Coordinate and drive 
responses identified 
through the demand 
analysis

Linked to 2.3.1

As per item 2.3.3 EDO

2.3.5 Investigate 
transition of the 
airport to a wholly 
owned corporation/ 
business unit.

By June 
2019

Based on business 
model and Airport 
Master Plan

- Develop plan for 
implementation of 
recommendation from 
business plan and 
Airport Master Plan

Linked to 2.3.3.

Subject to completion of 
item 2.3.3

EDO
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2.4 OBJECTIVE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
To support the island’s telecommunications and business 
development in line with the national framework

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Corporate and Community Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

2.4.2 Pursue improved 
service access and 
data speed across 
the island including 
the upgrade of 
the microwave 
connection to the 
mainland.

By June 
2019

Microwave link 
upgraded

KIPP 5.1

Advocacy with Telstra 
ongoing

DCCS

2.4.3 Review the 
continuation of 
the IT System 
implementation and 
upgrade.

On-going 1. Plan upgrade 
implemented 
completed

2. System reviews are 
undertaken to forecast 
future need 

Implementation of new 
corporate software 
ongoing.

DCCS

3.1 OBJECTIVE TOURISM
To support the growth of Tourism on King Island 

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Corporate and Community Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

3.1.3 Support growth 
of recreational 
and ecotourism 
activities through 
consultation, 
planning, and 
advocacy.

On-going 1.Considerations 
of recreation, 
eco-tourism to be 
incorporated into all 
development plans

Recreation and tourism 
opportunities are included 
in a Business Investment 
Opportunities document 
currently in development 
for release in FY2017-18, 
as per Destination Action 
Plan.

EDO
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

3.1.4 Support and 
enhance Council led 
events.

On-going 1. Build capacity in 
community to deliver 
events

2. Support community 
events 

Continuing to assist with 
the delivery of community 
led events and currently 
working with the Historical 
Society & RSL on the 
Centenary of ANZAC 
commemoration event, 
Birds of King Island on the 
delivery of two exhibitions 
and the instigation of a 
Clean-up KI event.

CTE

3.1.5 Participate in the 
implementation 
of the Destination 
Action Plan and 
implement Council 
actions.

Now – until 
2020

DAP Working with the EDO 
on the delivery of these 
actions and currently 
working on the delivery of 
an employment attraction 
and retention campaign for 
use by employers Island 
wide.

CTE

3.1.6 Participate and 
demonstrate 
leadership in 
processes that 
determine 
destination 
governance 
and destination 
development for 
King Island.

Now – until 
2020

1.Develop processes

Tour Dev Strategy 
2015-20 DAP 2.1.1, 
DAP 2.1.2 and 3.1.1

Currently developing a 
tourism marketing strategy 
with a view to conducting 
a workshop with KITI 
members.

CTE

3.2 OBJECTIVE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
To support existing and new businesses viability, development, 
and growth 

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Corporate and Community Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

4.1.1 Undertake a 
demand analysis 
that articulates 
current and 
emergent needs 
related to business 
investment, 
development, and 
expansion.

On-going 
until 2020 

1.Scope and 
parameters for the 
demand analysis set

2. Tools to capture 
data developed

3. Demand analysis 
report completed 

4. Analysis reviewed 
for currency

The scope of analysis has 
been discussed and agreed 
in principle. An outline 
report will be presented 
to Council for comment in 
early 2018.

EDO
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

4.1.2     Provide information 
about opportunities 
for emerging 
business demand; 
alongside relevant 
regulations and 
potential funding 
sources.

By June 
2018

TDS 3.3.5DAP 2.5 As per DAP, a Business 
Investment Opportunities 
document is being written 
in collaboration with 
DAP Leadership Group 
members. This document 
will be distributed to 
residents and interested 
off-island parties in early 
2018

EDO

4.1.3 Participate in the 
implementation 
of the DAP and 
implement actions 
that Council has 
responsibility for.

On-going 
until 2020

DAP 7.3 Ongoing CTE

4.2 OBJECTIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
Facilitate local economy opportunities for business development 
and employment opportunities  

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Corporate and Community Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

4.2.1 Seek funding 
to assist with 
employment 
of a Growth 
Coordinator.

On-going 1. State Government 
Minister lobbied for 
funding 

2. Grants submitted

This strategy not 
progressing

GM

4.2.3 Continue to 
participate in 
promoting and 
protecting the King 
Island Brand.

On-going 1. Participate in 
promoting/protecting 
the brand

DAP Priority 1.3.3

Actively opposing 
applications for trademarks 
which could be seen to be 
damaging or limiting King 
Island producers’ ability to 
trade or our Island’s brand 
and reputation.

EDO

4.2.4     Retain young 
people on King 
Island through 
increased post 
year ten options 
and increased 
vocational and on 
the job training and 
skills development 
opportunities.

On-going TDS 1.3.2, DAP 1.1

Murchison Community 
Plan

Successful grant 
application to facilitate 
delivery of a Cert 
III TasTAFE course, 
particularly aimed at 17 to 
24 year olds, on King Island 
will be acquitted during 
2018. 

Course enrolments 
now open. First session 
scheduled for mid-July with 
completion by the end of 
the year.

EDO
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5.1 OBJECTIVE ENVIRONMENT  
To ensure our Island’s natural and built resources are protected 
in ways that sustain our economic, environmental and social 
development  

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Works and Engineering Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

5.1.1 To ensure existing 
and future 
development is 
consistent with 
environmental 
goals, councils 
vision and guiding 
principles, current 
plans and policies.

On-going TDS 1.1.3 Ongoing DSO

5.1.2 To plan to 
safeguard the 
quality of soil, 
water, clean air and 
visual amenities.

On-going 1.Waste Management
Plan

2.KI Strategy Plan
Report 2008 (Land Use
and Development) -
Reviewed

Expressions of interest 
called for consultant 
to prepare waste 
management strategy 
2020-2029.

Funding applied for under 
BBRF in December with 
decision expected by June 
2018.

The KI Strategy Plan 
Report 2008 (Land Use 
and Development) has 
been reviewed and 
issues workshopped 
with Councillors. Work 
on a 2018 strategy is 
progressing with public 
consultation and adoption 
by Council to be completed 
prior to the end of 2018  

DSO

5.1.3     To ensure planning 
and decision-
making take into 
account physical, 
cultural, social and 
economic impacts; 
particularly for 
long-term planning; 
intergenerational 
equity principles. 

By 
December 
2017

1.Number of actions
completed strategic
plan 2008

(Land use and dev)

DAP 2.2. + 2.3

TDS 1.2 - Six Key 
Principles

TDS 3.3.3

All planning applications 
are assessed in accordance 
with the King Island Interim 
Planning Scheme 2013

DSO
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6.1 OBJECTIVE ADVOCACY AND LEADERSHIP 
To improve the economic, social, and environmental wellbeing of 
the King Island municipality

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY General Manager

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.1.1 Utilise the King 
Island Key Issues 
2016 and Priority 
Projects 2016 
documents 
to advocate 
for the Local, 
State, Regional 
and Federal 
Government; to 
address the urgent 
issue identified. 

On-going 1. Advocate current 
and future issues 

2. Build relationships

3. Communications 
strategy with all levels 
of government

KIPP and Key Issues

This remains an ongoing 
function

GM

6.1.2 Develop and 
implement the 
Emergency 
Management Plan.

On-going 1. Training and on-
going review

KIPP and Key Issues

King Island Municipal 
Emergency Management 
Plan has been completed 
and signed off by 
Commissioner Darren 
Hine, State Emergency 
Management Controller on 
20th December 2016

DIS

6.1.3 Support the 
concept of the 
Service Centre 
Development in 
Currie.

By 
December 
2020

KIPP and Key Issues

1.Working Party of 
key stakeholders 
established

2. Concept plan 
developed and 
projection costing 
established 

Some preliminary 
investigation and a revised 
level of interest now 
emerging from the State 
Government

GM

6.1.4 Advocate for health 
and emergency 
services to keep 
pace with growing 
demand.

On-going KIPP and Key Issues

1. Statement of need 
articulated by key 
stakeholders

There is no specific funding 
allocation for Community 
Services in Council’s budget 
to progress this matter

GM



6.2 OBJECTIVE GOVERNANCE 
Provide consistent, accountable, transparent and effective 
governance of the King Island Council 

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Corporate and Community Services

NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.2.1 Review the Council’s 
governance 
process, in terms 
of the policy 
framework which 
covers Governance, 
General Manager 
Directives, and 
Redundant Policies. 

1.By August 
2017

2. By June 
2018

3. On-going

1.Existing policies 
reviewed and 

Redundant Policies 
Identified

2. New policies 
developed (staged 
adoption) and 
document controls 
implemented

3. Document controls 
implemented and 
policies reviewed

Project Officer employed 
to continue policy 
development project – 
several policies under 
review.

DCCS

6.2.2 Develop a 
community 
engagement 
model to facilitate 
community 
participation and 
consultation in 
decision-making.

On-going 1.Quarterly Staff 
Forums

2.Annual Community 
Forums

3.Six monthly 
Councillor Forums

The framework 
for these forums 
are based on the 
implementation of the 
King Island Council 
Engagement Plan, 
which details how 
and when to engage, 
whom to target, how to 
assess the responses 
and conduct the 
evaluation. 

The process is aligned 
with the King Island 
Council’s planning 
process, such as 
Strategic Plan, Annual 
Plan, and Budget. 

A review of the King Island 
Council Engagement Plan 
will be undertaken in 
conjunction with the new 
GM.

CTE
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NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

6.2.3 Examine specific 
service delivery 
options between 
Council and other 
providers.

On-going Identify a number of 
service delivery options

Cradle Coast Authority 
coordinating a review 
of shared services, 
opportunities for 
NW Councils.  KIC 
has committed to 
further investigating 
recommendations from 
the report.

DCCS

6.2.4 Examine 
opportunities to 
resource share 
between other local 
councils, with the 
aim to improve 
efficiency and 
provide effective 
service.

On-going Number and type 
of resource sharing 
initiatives undertaken

Ongoing review of shared 
services opportunities 
being explored as per 
6.2.3.

GM

6.2.5 Communicate 
Council’s decisions, 
policies, and 
activities and the 
reasons behind 
them, through 
Council’s website 
and publications.

On-going Communication tools 
developed and are 
utilised, such as:

• Newsletters

• Media Releases

• Advertisements

• Radio ,T.V Interviews

• Facebook

• Website

Continuing to use 
Facebook, Press and 
radio to communicate 
key messages, whilst 
simultaneously rolling-out 
the re-brand across all 
channels. The new website 
will launch mid-July and 
represents a significant 
step forward in our 
external communications. 
Recording of Council 
meetings will also be 
introduced in July which 
will add another layer of 
transparency to Council 
communications.

CTE

6.3 OBJECTIVE FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
Provide long-term financial viability planning for the municipality 

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY Director of Corporate and Community Services

KRA NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

5i 6.3.1 Develop and 
annually review a 
financial strategy 
outlining how 
Council intends to 
meet the financial 
requirements (in 
line with the budget 
process) of its Asset 
Management Plans 
and other strategic 
plans.

1. By June
2018

1. Long-term financial
plan developed in
line with the Asset
Management Plans 2.1.

Under 
development.

DCCS
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KRA NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

5j 6.3.2 Examine and review 
the costs associated 
with the provision 
of facilities and 
where necessary 
provide cogent 
information in 
which Council can 
make informed 
decisions about 
community 
facilities/service 
obligations. 

On-going Number of facilities 
reviewed in 12-month 
period

Incorporate into the 
review the micro 
and macroeconomic 
impacts to the 
island, which can be 
utilised by the King 
Island Council and 
community members.

Reliant on outcome 
of Recreation Plan 
Review.

DCCS

5k 6.3.3 Undertake a 
review of Council’s 
current grants 
and sponsorship 
arrangements to 
ensure fairness and 
equity.

By  June 
2019

Recommendations 
for budget estimates 
workshop

Sponsorship policy 
under development

DCCS

5l 6.3.4 Develop and 
maintain policies 
and operational 
plans that are 
affordable to the 
community and 
sustainable into the 
future.

On-going Implementation of 
review cycle 

Ongoing DCCS

6.4 OBJECTIVE EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
To develop skilled, experienced, motivated and accountable staff 

FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITY General Manager

KRA NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

5n 6.4.1 Provide and 
maintain adequate 
staff and resources 
levels to meet 
changing needs.

On-going HRM review for 
additional HR 
requirements 

To be reviewed by 
incoming GM.

GM
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KRA NO: STRATEGY TIMELINE PERFORMANCE 
MEASURE PROGRESS UPDATE RO

5o 6.4.2 Retain an in-
house skills base 
to overcome the 
issue of succession 
planning and skill 
shortage.

1. By
December
2017

1. Succession plans
and individual staff
development plans in
place for all staff

2. Source appropriate
training for staff

This is a work in 
progress

Staff training 
programs are 
in place, with a 
number already 
commenced/
completed.  
LEAN training 
commenced 
November 2017.

GM

5p 6.4.3 Demonstrate 
commitment to 
the organisation's 
values and 
behaviours 
document and 
corresponding 
Action Plan 
(developed in Dec 
2015).

On-going Quarterly review 
of action plan and 
implementation of 
actions

To be reviewed by 
incoming GM.

GM

5q 6.4.4 Conduct annual 
reviews of staff 
performance in 
relation to support 
services and the 
maintenance of 
accurate records.

Annually Individual Staff 
Development Plans 
were undertaken

Being undertaken GM
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VI. Appendices – Source Documents Cited - Plans, Reports, and 
Strategies

NO: TITLE OF DOCUMENT DATE ABBREVIATION STRATEGIES

1. King Island Council – Strategic Plan – 
Land Use and Development 2008

2 MoHow – King Island Youth Strategy - 
Conwell Wagner 2008/2009

3 Currie Harbour Structure Plan – King 
Island Council – Ref: 22423-01 January 2007

4
King Island Strategy Plan Report – King 
Island Council – Project Ref No: 22654-
001

March 2008

5 King Island Recreation Plan – Final 
Report – HM Leisure Planning Pty Ltd

December 
2008

6 King Island Council – Strategic Plan 2011 – 2020

7
King Island – Socio-economic Stock, 
Flows and Prospects -  Strategic 
Economic Solutions

June 2015

8 King Island Airport Master Plan 21 June 2015 2.3

9
King Island Context Analysis – Business 
Sense Prepared for the King Island 
Council

November 
2015

10 King Island Council – Annual Report 
2010 – 2015

17th 
November 

2015

11 Helen Rees – Council Consultation 
Process 2015 – 2016

12 King Island Destination Action Plan 
2016 – 2020 – Cradle Coast

18th 
February 

2016
DAP 1, 2, 3, 4

13
Regional Development Australia – 
Tasmania – King Island Visit – Summary 
Report

April 2016 RDA

14 King Island Council – Tourism 
Development Strategy 2016 – 2020 May 2016 TDS 2, 3, 4

15 Budget Estimates 2016 - 2017 May 2016

16 King Island Council – Key Issues 2016 19th May 
2016 KISS

17 King Island Council – Key Issues – 
Executive Summary 2016

19th May 
2016 KIES

18 King Island Council – Priority Projects 
2016

19th May 
2016 KIPP 2, 5

Others documents cited:
• Waste Management Plan
• Sustainable Murchison 2040 Community Plan Regional Framework Plan
• King Island Municipal Emergency Management Plan – May 2016 – Issue 9 - King Island 

Visitor Survey – April 2015 – March 2016 – Prepared by King Island Council
• King Island Chamber of Commerce – King Island Workforce Capability Study – Final -  8 

February 2017 – RSC Tourism and The Work Lab
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Councillors of King Island Council 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
 
Opinion 
 
I have audited the accompanying financial report of King Island Council (Council), which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018 and the statements of comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended, notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the statement of 
certification by the General Manager. 
 
In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
section of my report, the accompanying financial report: 

(a) presents fairly, in all material respects, Council’s financial position as at 30 June 2018 and 
its financial performance and its cash flows  for the year then ended 

(b) is in accordance with the Local Government Act 1993 and Australian Accounting 
Standards. 

 
Basis for Qualified Opinion 
 
Council property, plant and equipment includes aerodrome infrastructure and road assets as 
detailed in Note 6.2 of the financial report. Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are 
measured at their fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment and AASB 13 
Fair Value Measurement. AASB 116 also requires Council to carry out revaluations with sufficient 
regularity to ensure the carrying amount of these assets does not differ materially from that which 
would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Council has not undertaken a revaluation of the aerodrome infrastructure or road assets since 
30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012, respectively. My assessment of the financial impact of Council 
failing to undertake revaluations with sufficient regularity is based on the application of relevant 
construction indices determined by the Australian Bureau of Statistics. The understatement in the 
aerodrome infrastructure value was $1.33m and road assets $3.64m at 30 June 2018. There is a 
corresponding understatement in Council’s asset revaluation reserves recorded as part of equity. 
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I conducted the audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of my report. I am independent of Council in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
 
The Audit Act 2008 further promotes the independence of the Auditor-General. The Auditor-
General is the auditor of all Tasmanian public sector entities and can only be removed by Parliament.  
The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not subject to 
direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. The Auditor-
General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and property and can 
report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are significant. 
 
My audit responsibility does not extend to the budget figures included in the financial report and 
the asset renewal funding ratio disclosed in note 10.5 and accordingly, I express no opinion on them. 
Furthermore, I express no opinion on the General Manager’s determination that Council have 
Significant Business Activities for inclusion in the financial report as required by Section 84(2)(da) of 
the Local Government Act 1993. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my adverse opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of the General Manager for the Financial Report 
 
The General Manager is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993 and for 
such internal control as determined necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that 
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial report, the General Manager is responsible for assessing Council’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless Council is to be dissolved by an Act of Parliament or 
the Councillors intend to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.  I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Council’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the General Manager.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the General Manager’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required 
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusion is based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause Council to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
I communicate with the General Manager regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 
 
 
 

 
Rod Whitehead  
Auditor-General  
 
Tasmanian Audit Office 
 
19 November 2018 
Hobart  
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Statutory Fee 
& Fines

Rates & Charges

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

User 
Fees

Grants Private 
Works

Interest Other 
Income

Investment 
Revenue From 

Water 
Corporation

Income - FY17/18 Actuals Income - FY17/18 Budget Income - FY17/18 Forecast

Income FY17/18

Income FY17/18 Actuals

 

Rates & Charges
$2,454,500
34%

Interst
147,966
2%

User Fees
652,907
9%

Other
Income
576,409
8%

Grants
1,889,555
26%

Private Works
1,309,637
18%

Investment Revenue From 
Water Corporation
103,509
1%

Statutory Fee & Fines
131,988
2%



50

Financial Costs
59,062
1%

Employee Benefits
2,200,009
29%

Materials & Services
2,862,732
37%

Depreciation & 
Amortisation
1,598,189
21%

Other 
Expenses
920,277
12%

Materials & 
Services

Employee 
Benefits

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

Depreciation & 
Amortisation

Finance
Cost

Other 
Expenses

Expenditure - FY17/18 Actuals Expenditure - FY17/18 Budget Expenditure - FY17/18 Forecast

Expenditure FY17/18 

Expenditure FY17/18 Actuals

3,500,000
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King Island Council 

Unaudited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Budget
FY17/18

$

Forecasted
FY17/18*

$

Actual
FY17/18

$

Rates and charges (Note 2.1) 2,450,034 2,435,896 2,454,500

The budget and forecast figures do not include pre-paid rates, which is included in the actual result.  
It is not possible to budget or forecast an amount for pre-paid rates as it varies each year.  As at 30 
June 2018, approx $19k was pre-paid for 2018/19 rates (issued in July 2018).

Statutory Fees and Fines (Note 2.2) 146,095 135,181 131,988

The 2017/18 financial year has seen a decrease in planning and building permits. Original and 
forecasted budgets are based on previous years actuals. It is difficult to estimate as planning 
developments and building applications are unknown until they are brought to Council for 
assessment.  

User Fees (Note 2.3) 693,203 616,451 652,907

Non-RPT landings have decreased from prior years in 2017/18, which has seen a decrease in the 
actual result compared to the budget estimates.

Grants (Note 2.4) 890,282 1,845,399 1,889,555

The variation between budget and actual is due to the pre-payment of the 2018/2019 financial 
assistance grant in 2017/2018.  As part of its budget announcements for 2018/2019, the 
Commonwealth Government made a prepayment of 2018/2019 Financial Assistance Grant to all 
local governments in Australia in June 2018. King Island Council received $899,143 which represents 
50% of the total allocation for 2018/2019. 

Due to the advanced notice, Council was able to incorporate this adjustment into the 2018/2019 
budget. However, due to accounting requirements the payment has been included in grants income 
for 2017/2018 which is reported in this current financial report.

Council were also awarded a number of grants in 2017/2018 that were unbudgeted for, due to 
applications pending at the beginning of the financial year and funding arising during the year.

Private Works (Note 2.6) 1,028,560 1,349,918 1,309,637

The budget for private works income did not include the school carpark project. The forecast was 
calculated on the completion of this project. Unfortunately, this was not the case and the final stages 
of the project have been carried over to 2018/19. This is the reason for the difference between the 
actuals and the forecast.

Interest (Note 2.7) 110,000 104,200 147,966

There was an increase in rates interest penalties, for overdue rates in 2017/18. Also, favourable 
interest rates for Council’s term deposits have seen interest income reach above budget estimates.

Other Income (Note 2.8) 529,296 514,382 576,409

The majority of this income is made of the Motor Tax Refund that King Island receives from the 
State Government in June every year (approx. $470k). This is an unknown figure when calculating 
estimates.

Investment Revenue from Taswater 
(Note 2.10) 99,000 99,000 103,509

The investment revenue from Taswater has been frozen at $99k. An unexpected guarantee fee was 
paid to Council on 30 June 2018
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Budget
FY17/18

$

Forecasted
FY17/18*

$

Actual
FY17/18

$

Capital grants received for new or 
upgraded assets (Note 2.4) 520,727 517,003 517,006

The 2017/18 budget was solely based on Council’s Roads to Recovery allocation. The difference 
between the actual and budget estimate is due to a refund of the remaining grant funds carried over 
for the Jaycee Park Upgrade.

Other contributions (Note 2.5) - - 46,953

This item is an insurance settlement for a shed at the Council Depot.

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, 
plant and equipment and infrastructure 
(Note 2.9)

22,000 428,518 (20,620)

Net gain/(loss) on disposal is calculated by proceeds of sale (price the disposed asset is sold for) less 
the written-down value of the disposed asset (the purchase price Council paid for the asset less the 
accumulated depreciation throughout the life of the asset).  This calculation is shown in Note 2.9.  
The majority of asset disposals are plant and equipment.

During Council’s budget process only the proceeds for sale are estimated and forecasted.  The 
written-down value is not estimated hence the variance of the actual and budget.  This practice will 
be updated following an external review of the plant and equipment register values.

The difference between the budget and forecast is due to the sale of 101 Main St.

Employee Benefits (Note 3.1) (2,224,422) (2,015,843) (2,200,009)

While wages and salaries were down compared to estimates due to vacancies during 2017/18, 
there were a number of large end of year accounting adjustments in preparation for the financial 
statements. This included increased movements of annual and long service leave provisions. There 
was also an increase in workers compensation insurance premiums for 2017/18.

Materials and services (Note 3.2) (1,786,537) (2,587,575) (2,862,731)

2017/18 experienced higher than anticipated materials and services costs.  This was consistently 
reported to Council through the monthly financial reports and during the budget process for 2018/19.  
Factors affecting the increase included:
• Corporate services – General Manager recruitment, engagement of acting General Managers, 

engagement of accounting contractors – this expenditure is substantially offset by under-
expenditure in employee costs.

• Private works – Council has engaged contractors to assist with the additional Department of 
Education construction project, along with the use of more material. This has resulted in 
expenditure exceeding the budget by approximately $175,000.

• Compliance and strategic planning – several compliance and strategic planning projects have 
commenced in June 2018 including HSE audit, environmental compliance assessments, risk 
management and asset management plans. This value is approximately $40,000.

• Building maintenance – there has been an additional $49,000 incurred on essential building 
maintenance due to HSE requirements and housing maintenance.

• Road maintenance – an additional $40,000 has been spent on road maintenance in 2017/18.
• Quarry rehabilitation - $40,000 has been spent on quarry rehabilitation in 2017/18 with significant 

rehabilitation budgeted for 2018/19.
• Plant operations expenditure – Council outsourced maintenance of its fleet and plant to 

contractors for 2017/18 due to difficulties recruiting a qualified mechanic in 2016/17. This trial, 
along with increased breakdowns relating to an ageing fleet, resulted in additional expenditure 
of $96,000.

• Internal plant hire recovery – the review process undertaken during the 2018/19 budget 
preparation highlighted the need to review all Council unit rates in 2018/19, including internal 
plant recovery. The under-recovery for 2017/18 is estimated at $275,000. This means that the 
plant expenditure is not 100% covered by the projects undertaken by Council and may result in 
an under-valuing of work performed for external parties or grant funding.



Budget
FY17/18

$

Forecasted
FY17/18*

$

Actual
FY17/18

$

Depreciation and Amortisation (Note 
3.4) (1,689,491) (1,689,490) (1,598,189)

The end of year review of Council’s assets has resulted in a decrease in depreciation and 
amortisation for 2017/18.

Finance Costs (Note 3.5) (59,615) (59,231) (59,062)

Finance costs were as expected for 2017/18.

Other Expenses (Note 3.6) (1,017,570) (954,305) (920,277)

This expenditure item is below budget estimates due to a number of savings made across most 
departments.  There are no individual items of significance to report.

* Forecasted figures as per 2017/18 forecast column in the 2018/19 budget document.

* Please note that figures inside brackets indicate expenses.
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King Island Council 
2017-2018 Financial Ree_ort 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 
Budget Actual Actual 

Note 2018 2018 2017 

Income from continuing operations $ $ $ 
Recurrent income 
Rates and charges 2.1 2,450,034 2,454,500 2,146,879 
Statutory fees and fines 2.2 146,095 131,988 183,302 
User fees 2.3 693,203 652,907 608,931 
Grants 2.4 890,282 1,889,555 2,754,635 
Private works 2.6 1,028,560 1,309,637 759,893 
Interest 2.7 110,000 147,966 123,895 
Other income 2.8 529,296 576,409 575,381 
Investment revenue from water coreoration 2.10 99,000 103,509 99,000 

5
1
946,470 7,266,471 7,251,918 

Capital income 
Capital grants received specifically for new or upgraded assets 2.4 520,727 517,006 532,898 
Other contributions 2.5 46,953 154,092 
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 2.9 22,000 (20,620) (119,577) 

542,727 543,339 567,413 

Total income from continuing operations 6,489,197 7,809,809 7,819,331 

Exeenses from continuing oeerations 
Employee benefits 3.1 (2,224,422) (2,200,009) (2,198,420) 
Materials and services 3.2 (1,786,537) (2,862,731) (2,439,708) 
Depreciation and amortisation 3.3 (1,689,491) (1,598,189) (1,606,445) 
Finance costs 3.4 (59,615) (59,062) (41,429! 
Other expenses 3.5 (1,017,570) (920,277) (809,096: 

Total expenses from continuing operations (6,777 ,6351 (7,640,269) (7,095,098) 

Result from continuing operations (288,438) 169
1
541 724,232 

Net result for the year (288,438) 169,541 724,232 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit 

Net asset revaluation increment/{decrement) 9.1 (388,426) 
(388,426) 

Items that ma� be reclassified subseguentl� to surelus or deficit 
Financial assets available for sale reserve 

- Fair Value adjustment on Available for Sale Assets 9.1 63,774 32,026 
63,774 32,026 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 63,774 (356,401) 

Total Comprehensive result (288,438) 233,315 367,832 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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King Island Council 

2017-2018 Financial Ree.on 

Statement of Financial Position 

As at 30 June 2018 
Note 2018 2017 

$ $ 

Assets 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 2A20,208 2,479,734 

Investments 5.2 4,356,395 3,847,337 

Trade and other receivables 5.3 458,971 366,246 

Inventories 5.4 906,075 772,799 

Other assets 6.1 148,610 165,562 

Total current assets 8,290,260 7,631,679 

Non-current assets 

Investment in water corporation 4.1 4,977,407 4,913,633 

Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 6.2 62,963,013 63,066,871 

Total non-current assets 67,940,419 67,980,504 

Total assets 76,230,680 75,612,182 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 7.1 626,951 227,102 

Trust funds and deposits 7.2 357,355 201,037 

Other liabilities 7.3 20,665 15.713 

Provisions 74 228,846 184,008 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 8.1 197,022 220,871 

Total current liabilities 1,430,838 848,731 

Non-current liabilities 

Other liabilities 7.3 4,176 3,959 
Provisions 7.4 46,248 46,363 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 8.1 1,189,004 1,386,025 

Total non-current liabilities 1,239,428 1,436,347 

Total I iabilities 2,670,267 2,285,078 

Net Assets 73,560,418 73,327,104 

Equity 

Accumulated surplus 26,946,448 27,058,399 

Reserves 9.1 46,613,972 46,268,708 

Total Equity 73,560,420 73,327,105 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

2



King Island Council 
2017-2018 Financial Report 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Rates 
Statutory fees and fines 
User charges and other fines (inclusive of GST) 
Grants (inclusive of GST) 
Other contributions (inclusive of GST) 
Private Works (inclusive of GST) 
Interest received 
Rents 
Investment revenue from water corporation 
Other receipts (inclusive of GST) 
Net GST refund/payment 
Payments to suppliers (inclusive of GST) 
Payments to employees (including redundancies) 
Finance costs 
Other ealments 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 

Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 
Capital grants (inclusive of G ST) 
Investments in term deposits 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Trust funds and deposits 
Proceeds from interest bearing loans and borrowings 
Reea�ment of interest bearing loans and borrowings 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 

Restrictions on cash assets 
Financing arrangements 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Note 

9.2 

9.3 

5.1 
9.4 

2018 2017 
Inflows/ Inflows/ 

(Outflows) (Outflows) 
$ $ 

2,424,523 2,154,957 
131,988 183,302 
764,164 424,429 

1,889,555 2,768,813 
46,953 

1,440,601 835,883 
147,966 123,895 
70,705 62,221 

103,509 99,000 
505,704 513,160 
29,139 5,034 

(2,913,323) (2,230,726) 
(2,150,116) (2,197,963) 

(59,062) (41,429) 
(920,277) (809,096) 

1,512,029 1,891,479 

(1,953,579) (1,172,423} 

438,628 42,864 
517,006 532,898 
(509,058) (225,401) 

(1,507,003) j822,062) 

156,318 (5,952) 
822,000 

(220,870) (190,140) 
(64,552) 625,908 

(59,527) 1,695,326 
2,479,735 784,409 

2,420,208 2,479,735 



King Island Council 

2017-2018 Financial Ree,ort 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Asset Fair 
Accumulated Revaluation Value Other 

Note Total Surplus Reserve Reserve Reserves 
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 

2018 $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at beginning of the financial year 73,327,105 27,058,399 42,132,544 365,420 3,770,742 

Surplus/ (deficit) for the year 169,541 169,541 

Other Comprehensive Income: 
Financial assets available for sale reserve 

- Fair Value adjustment on Available for Sale Assets 4.1 63,774 63,774 
Transfers between reserves (281,488) 281,488 
Balance at end of the financial year 73,560,422 26,946,452 42,132,544 429,194 4,052,233 

Asset Fair 
Accumulated Revaluation Value Other 

Total Surplus Reserve Reserve Reserves 
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 

2017 $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at beginning of the financial year 72,959,273 27,859,997 42,520,970 333,395 2,244,910 

Surplus I (deficit) for the year 724,232 724,232 

Other Comprehensive Income: 
Financial assets available for sale reserve 

- Fair Value adjustment on Available for Sale Assets 4.1 32,025 32,025 
Net asset revaluation incrementl(decrement} 9.1 (388,426) (388,426) 

Transfers between reserves (1,525,832) 1,525,832 
Balance at end of the financial year 73,327,104 27,058,399 42,132,544 365,420 3,770,742 

The above statement should be read with the accompanying notes. 
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King Island Council 

2017-2018 Financial Report 

Nate 1 Overview 
1.1 Reporting Entity 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

(a) The The King Island Council (Council) was established in 1907 and is a body corporate with perpetual succession and a common seal 
Council's main office is located at 10 George Street, Currie.

[b) The purpose of the council is to provide delivery of local government services and affordable infrastructure to support the community in it's endeavours 
and be an advocate for the Island with Governments and other organisations. 

1.2 Basis of accounting 

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, 
Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, and notes accompanying these financial statements. The general 
purpose financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards 
Board, and the Local Government Act 1993 (LGA1993) (as amended). Council has determined that it does not have profit generation as a prime 
objective. Consequently, where appropriate, Council has elected to apply options and exemptions within accounting standards that are applicable to not
for-profit entities. 

This financial report has been prepared on the accrual and going concern bases. 

All amounts are presented in Australian dollars and unless stated, have been rounded to the nearest whole dollars. 

This financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except where specifically stated in notes 4.1, 6.2, 7.4, 8.1 and 10.3(d) 

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate, comparative figures have beer 
amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material changes to comparatives. 

1.3 Use of judgements and estimates 

Judgements and Assumptions 
In the application of Australian Accounting Standards, Council is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values o1
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods. 

Council has made no assumptions concerning the future that may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next reporting period. Judgements made by Council that have significant effects on the financial report are disclosed in the relevant notes as 
follows: 

Employee entitlements 
Assumptions are utilised in the determination of Council's employee entitlement provisions. These assumptions are discussed in note 7 .4. 

Defined benefit superannuation fund obligations 
Actuarial assumptions are utilised in the determination of Council's defined benefit superannuation fund obligations These assumptions are discussec 
in note 9.6. 

Fair value of property, plant & equipment 
Assumptions and judgements are utilised in determining the fair value of Council's property, plant and equipment including useful lives and depreciation 
rates. These assumptions are discussed in note 6.2. 

Investment in water corporation 
Assumptions utilised in the determination of Council's valuation of its investment in TasWater are discussed in note 4.1. 
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King Island Council 

2017-2018 Finandal Report 

1.4 Functions of the Council 

Notes to the Financial Report 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

(a) Revenue, expenditure and assets attributable to each function as categorised in (c) below:

Total 
Grants Other Revenue 

Government and administration 

2017 - 2018 777,531 236,283 1,013,814 
2016 - 2017 1,112,186 226,235 1,338,421 

Roads, streets and bridges 
2017 -2018 1,543,207 469,589 2,012,796 
2016 - 2017 1,967,774 453,305 2.421,079 

Waste management 
2017-2018 - 526,001 526,001 
2016-2017 - 409,314 409,314 

Building. Planning and Environmental health 
2017 - 2018 - 95,152 95,152 
2016 - 2017 49,000 124,551 173,551 

Community amenities 
2017 - 2018 16,279 18,741 35,020 
2016 -2017 23,500 5,826 29,326 

Community services 
2017-2018 69,544 20,609 90,153 
2016 -2017 133,823 133,617 267,440 

Recreation facilities 
2017 -2018 - - -

2016 - 2017 . 

Other - not attributable 
2017 -201 B - 4,036,874 4,036,874 
2016 -2017 1,250 3,178,950 3,180,200 

Total 
2017 · 2018 2,406,561 5,403,249 7,809,810 
2016 • 2017 3,287,533 4,531,798 7,819,331 

6

Total Surplus/ 
Expenditure (Deficit) Assets 

2,096,422 (1,082,608) 10,330,618 
2,047,878 (709,457) 10,098,457 

1,488,787 524,009 42,515,598 
1,791,394 629,685 42,184,976 

399,634 126,367 718,585 
647,380 (238,066) 541,769 

229,599 (134,447) -

149,164 24,387 -

463,894 (428,874) 899,096 
251,811 (222,485) 846,306 

131,184 (41,031) 488,011 
458,909 (191,469) 968,918 

1,992,707 
99,041 (99,041) 1,492,741 

2,830,749 1,206,125 19,286,067 
1,649,520 1,530,680 19.479,016 

7,640,269 169,540 76,230,682 
7,095,097 724,234 75,612,183 



King Island Council 

2017-2018 Financial Report 
Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

(b) Reconci/iafion of Assets above with the Statement of Financial Posifion at 30 June:

(c) Governance and administration

Current assets 
Non-current asse1s 

2018 
$ 

8,290,260 
67,940,419 
76,230,679 

Operation and maintenance of council chambers. administration offices, and councillors. 

Roads, streets and bridges

2017 
$ 

7,631,679 
67,980,504 
75,612,183 

Construction, maintenance and cleaning of road, streets, footpaths, bridges, parking facilities and street lighting. 

Waste Management 
Collection, handling, processing and disposal of all waste materials. 

Building, Planning and Environmental Health 
The development and maintenance of building constructions standards. Administration of the town planning scheme, subdivisions and urban and rura 
renewal programs. Environmental Health includes disease control, food surveillance, public-use building standards, health education and promotion, 
water quality, workplace safety and cemeteries. Environmental management includes strategies and programs for the protection cf the environment 
and regulations of activities affecting the environment. 

Community amenities 
Operation and maintenance of housing for aged persons and persons of limited means, Civic Centre, Council halls (excluding indoor sports 
complexes). 

Community services Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 
Administration and operation of dog registration, operation of pounds, control of straying stock, and noxious weeds. Operation of the Child Care 
Centre, operation and support of the performing arts, museum and the presentation of festivals. Community Development which provides for the 
implementation of a process by which strategies and plans can be developed so that the Council can fulfil their general responsibility for enhancins 
the quality of life of the whole community. 

Recreation facilities 
Operation and maintenance of sporting facilities (includes swimming pools, active and passive recreation and recreation centres) 

Other• not at/ribufeble 
Rates and charges and work not attributed elsewhere. 

7 



2017-2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 2 
Note 2.1 

Note 2.2 

Note 2.3 

Revenue 
Rates and charges 

2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 

Council uses Adjusted Annual Assessed Value as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipality. The Adjusted Annual 
Assessed Value of a property is its adjusted assessed annual rental value. 
The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2017-1 B was $24.4D8 million (2D16-17 $22.184 million). The 2017-1 B rate in the 
Adjusted Annual Assessed Value dollar was 8.332 cents (2D16-17,8.145 cents). 

General Rate 
Fire Levy 
Waste Collection Charge 
Total rates and charges 

2,018,045 
106,518 
329,936 

2,454,500 

1,796,547 
101,614 
248,719 

2,146,879 

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipality was 1 July 2016, and the valuation will be first 
applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2017. 

Accounting policy 

Rates and charges income 
Rate income is recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the assets comprising the receipt. 
Control over assets acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the 
rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates. 

Statutory fees and fines 
Building Fees 
Planning and Development Fees 
Rates and Land Information Certificates 
Animal Control Registrations and Fees 
Licence & Permit Fees 
Total statutory fees and fines 

Accounting policy 

Statutory fee and fine income 

18,258 
66,990 
26,308 
10,863 
9,569 

131,988 

36,804 
99,974 
28,035 
9,590 
8,899 

183,302 

Fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is received, 
or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs. 

User fees 
Airport User Fees 441,712 442,414 
Refuse Disposal Fees 192,208 156,900 
Cemetery 18,033 7,810 
Hall Hire 413 1,391 
Other Fees and Charges 541 416 
Total user fees 652,907 608,931 

Accounting policy 

User fee income 
Fee income is recognised as revenue when the service has been provided. or the payment is received, whichever first occurs. 
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2017-2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 2.4 Grants 
Grants were received in respect of the following: 
Summary of grants 
Federally funded grants 
State funded grants 
Others 
Total 

Grants - Recurrent 
Financial Assistance Grants 
Fuel Tax Credit 
Tasmanian Medicare Local-Rural Primary Heallh Services 
Arts Tasmania lnterlsland Exchange Art Project 
DPIPWE - Multi Species Abattoir Business Plan 
Department of State Growth - King Island Township Masterplans 
Tasmanian Community Fund - Museum Roof 
DPAC - Telecommunications plan 
DPAC - Anzac Grant 
Department of State Growth - Right Fit First Time 
FRRR - Access to Education 

Total recurrent grants 

2018 
$ 

2,320,738 
81,279 
4,544 

2,406,560 

1,773,855 
26,156 

20,000 
20,000 
5,000 

40,000 
4,544 

1,889,555 

2017 

$ 

3,191,740 
95,792 

3,287,532 

2,548,328 
22,234 

111,780 
1,250 

22,043 
49,000 

2,754,635 

The Australian Commonwealth Government provides Financial Assistance Grants to Council for general purpose use and the provision of 
local roads. In 2017-18 the Commonwealth made early payment of the two quarterly instalments for the following year. In accordance with 
AASB1004 Contributions, Council recognises these grants as revenue when it receives the funds and obtains control. The early receipt of 
instalments resulted in Commonwealth Government Financial Assistance Grants being above that originally budgeted in 2017-16 by 
$899,143. This has impacted the Statement of Comprehensive Income resulting in the Surplus/(deficit) being higher in 2017-18 by the 
same amount. 

Capital grants received specifically for new or upgraded assets 
Commonwealth F AGs relating lo the financial year 
Commonwealth FAGs included in operating result for the financial year 
Increase/decrease in the operating surplus due to early receipt of FAGS 

Capital grants received specifically for new or upgraded assets 
Roads to Recovery 
Tasmania Community Fund - Jaycee Playground 

Conditions on grants 

(874,712) (1,683,046) 
1,773,855 2,548,328 
2,648,567 4,231,374 

520,727 509,398 
{3,721) 23,500 

517,006 532,898 

Non-reciprocal grants which were obtained on the condition that they be expended for specified purposes or in a future period, but which are 
not yet expended in accordance with those conditions, are as follows: 

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 
Less: expended during the current period from revenues recognised in previous reporting periods 

DPAC-Election Commitments-Currie Oval Pavilion Upgrade 
Department of State Growth - King Island Shipping Business Plan 
Department of State Growth - King Island Township Masterplans 

45,000 

(45,000) 
(45,000) 

Plus: amounts recognised as revenues in this reporting period but not yet expended in accordance with the conditions 
Department of State Growth - King Island Township Masterplans 
Tasmanian Community Fund - Museum Roof 
DPAC - Telecommunications plan 
DPAC - Anzac Grant 
Department of State Growth - Right Fit First Time 
FRRR - Access lo Education 

Unexpended at the close of this reporting period 
Net increase (decrease) in non-reciprocal grant revenues for the year: 
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3,814 
20,000 
5,000 

40,000 
4,544 

73,358 
28,358 

47164 

(43,622) 
(3,542) 

(47,164) 

45,000 

45,000 
(2,164) 



2017-2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 2.5 

Note 2.6 

Note 2.7 

Grants repaid 

Tasmanian Community Fund Jaycee Playground 
Total grants repaid 

Accounting policy 

Grant income• operating and capital 
Grant income is recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the assets comprising the receipt 

2018 

$ 

3,721 

3,721 

2017' 

$ 

Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured, 
and are valued at their fair value at the date of transfer. 

Where grants recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition that they be expended in a particular manner or 
used over a particular period and those conditions were undischarged at balance date, the unused grant is also disclosed. The note also 
discloses the amount of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was expended on Council's operations during the current year. 

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite service has not been provided at 
balance date and conditions include a requirement to refund unused contributions. Revenue is then recognised as the various performance 
obligations under an agreement are fulfilled. Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants. 

Unreceived contributions over which Council has control are recognised as receivables. 

Contributions 
(a) Cash
Other contributions
Tota I contributions 

Accounting policy 

Contribution income 

Contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over 1he assets comprising the receipt 

46,953 154,092 
46,953 154,092 

Revenue is recognised when Council obtains control of the contribution or 1he right to receive the contribution, it is probable that the 
economic benefits comprising the contribution will flow to Council and the amoun1 of the contribution can be measured reliably. Control over 
granted asse1s is normally obtained upon their receipt {or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured, and are valuec 
at their fair value at the date of transfer. 

Non-monetary contributions (including developer contributions) with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised as 
revenue and as non-current assets. 

Unreceived contributions over which Council has control are recognised as receivables. 

Private works 

Road Works Performed for State 

Works Undertaken for Other Entities 

Total private works 

Accounting policy 
Private works income 

713,122 

596,515 
1,309,637 

374,180 

385,715 
759,893 

Private works income is recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or when the payment is received, whichever first 
occurs. 

Interest 

Interest on rates 

Interest on cash and cash equivalents 
Total 

Accounting policy 

Interest income 

Interest is recognised progressively as it is earned 

10 

23,695 
124,271 

147,966 

23,374 
100,521 

123,895 



2017-2018 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 2.8 

Note 2.9 

Other income 
Rental/ Lease Income 
Commission 
Part 5 Agreement - Royalties 
Reimbursements 
Other 
Motor tax refund 
Total other income 

Accounting policy 

Rental income 

Operating leases as lessor 

2018 
$ 

70,705 
6,475 
4,789 

15,535 
9,316 

469,589 
576,409 

2017 
$ 

62,221 
9,442 
6,484 

22,983 
20,945 

453,305 
575,381 

Council is a lessor and enters into agreements with a number of lessees. These include commercial and non-commercial agreements. 
Where leases are non-commercial agreements, these are generally with not for profit, such as sporting, organisations. In these cases 
subsidised or peppercorn rents are charged because Council recognises part of its role is community service and community support. In 
these situations, Council records lease revenue on an accruals basis and records the associated properties as part of land and buildings 
within property, plant and equipment. Buildings are recognised at depreciated replacement cost. 

Where leases are commercial agreements, but properties leased are part of properties predominantly used by Council for its own purposes 
Council records lease revenue on an accruals basis and records the associated properties as part of land and buildings within property, 
plant and equipment Buildings are recognised at depreciated replacement cost. 
Where leases are commercial agreements, and properties leased are predominantly used for leasing to third parties, Council records lease 
revenue on an accruals basis and records the associated properties as investment property in accord a nee with AASB 140 Investment

Properties. These properties are recognised at fair value. These leases may include incentives which have not been recognised in the 
statement of financial position, on the basis the amounts are unlikely to be material and could be reliably measured at balance date. 

Commision income 

Commision income is recognised when Council's right to receive payment is established. 

Royalties income 

Roaylties income is recognised when Council's right to receive payment is established. 

Reimbursements income 

Reimbursements are recognised as revenue when the payment is due or the payment is received, whichever first occurs. 

Other in co me 

Reimbursements are recognised as revenue when the payment is due or the payment is received, whichever first occurs. 

Motor tax refund income 

Motor tax refund income is recognised as revenue when the payment is received. 

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 
Proceeds of sale 
Write down value of assets disposed 
Total 

Accounting policy 

Gains and losses on asset disposals 

438,628 
(459,248} 
(20,620) 

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer. 

42,864 
(162,441} 
(119,577) 

Note 2.10 Investment revenue from water corporation 
Dividend revenue received 61,047 

29,222 
13,240 

64,207 
29,818 
4,975 

Tax equivalent received 
Guarantee fee received 
Tota I investment revenue from water corporation 

Accounting policy 

Investment revenue 
Dividend revenue is recognised when Council's right to receive payment is established. 
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103,509 99,000 
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Note 3 

Note 3.1 

Note 3.2 

Expenses 

Employee benefits 

Wages and salaries 
Workers compensation 
Annual leave and long service leave 
Sick Leave 
Su peran nua1ion 

Fringe benefits tax 

Payroll Tax 
Other employee costs 
Relocation costs 

Less amounts capitalised 
Total employee benefits 

Accounting policy 

Employee benefits 

2018 
$ 

1,718.402 
61,526 

200,253 
31,397 

211,492 
8,356 

57,246 
8,458 

28,180 
2,325,310 
(125,301) 

2,200,009 

2017 
$ 

1,751,979 
53,291 

163,483 
35,019 

201,570 
8,877 

58,938 
21,314 
4,098 

2,298,569 
(100,150) 

2,198,420 

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in 
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. 

Employee benefits include, where applicable, entitlements to wages and salaries, annual !eave, sick leave, long service leave, 
superannuation and any other post-employment benefits. 

Materials and services 

Consultants 470,538 
Contractors 1,875,202 
materials (including inventory) 451,575 
freight 49,864 
internal plant hire (94,245)
printing 27,848 
utilities 81,949 
Total materia Is and services 2,862,731 

Accounting policy 

Materials and services expense 

359,691 
1,212,144 

837,100 
40,364 

(138,123) 
31,756 
96,776 

2,439,708 

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in 
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. 

Routine maintenance, repair costs, and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates to the replacement of a 
comporient of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the 
replaced asset is expensed. 
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Note 3.3 Depreciation and amortisation 

Property 

Buildings 

Buildings 

Jetties 

Heritage Buildings 

Plant and Equipment 

Plant, machinery and equipment 
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 

Computers and telecommunications 

Infrastructure 

Roads 
Bridges 

Aerodrome 

Drainage 
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 

Waste management 
Total depreciation and amortisation 

Accounting policy 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

2018 

$ 

47,895 

14,756 

565 

226,147 

5,394 
18,642 

680,105 

133,349 
418,491 

25,472 

14,814 

12,560 

1,598,189 

201? 

$ 

51,228 
14,756 

565 

234,239 
8,409 

17,518 

680,105 
131,515 

415,264 

25,472 

14,814 

12,560 

1,606,445 

Expenses are recognised m the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in 
asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. 

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure and other assets having limited useful lives are systematically depreciated 
over their useful lives to Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of 
remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates 
and methods are reviewed annually. 

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned distinct usefu 
lives and remaining values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component. 
Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year. 
Major depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated: 

Land 

Buildings 

Buildings 

Building Improvements 

Heritage Buildings 

Plant and Equipment 

Plant, Machinery and Equipment 

Fixtures, Fittings and Furniture 

Computers and Telecommunications 

Roads 

Road Pavements 

Road Seals 

Road Formation 

Road Footpath, Kerb, Channel and Minor Culverts 
Bridges 

Bridges Deck 
Bridges Substructure 

Other Infrastructure 

Drainage 

Recreation and Community Facilities 
Waste Management 

Aerodrome Infrastructure 
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Period 

20-100 years

20-100 years

50-100 years

5-20 years 

5-20 years

3-5 years 

60-80 years

60-80 years
80-100 years

50-80 years

30-60 years

20-80 years

70-80 years
20-60 years 

15-40 years 

10-100 years
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Note 3.4 

Note 3.5 

Finance costs 

Interest - Borrowings 

Total finance costs 

Accounting policy 

Finance expense 

2018 

$ 

59,062 

59,062 

2017 

$ 

41,429 

41,429 

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in 
asset or an in crease of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. 

Finance costs are expensed as incurred using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs include interest on bank overdrafts, interest on 
borrowings, unwinding of discounts, and finance lease charges. 

Other expenses 

Advertising 37,031 23,536 

Audit Panel Fees 7,095 7,604 

Bank Fees 5,483 7,289 

Commissions Paid 29,459 30,477 

Community Grants and sponsorships 51,674 36,230 

Conferences & Training 62,222 14,555 

Council Rates 30,217 26,179 

Councillors' allowances 112,766 111,133 

Election expenses 1,375 1,233 

External auditors' remuneration 31,970 33,000 

Fire Service Levy 107,691 100,217 

Insurance & registration 148,485 150,209 

Land Tax 26,504 42,937 

Licences & Permits 32,709 34,035 

Operating lease 10,920 8,812 

Other 20,425 25,342 

Subscriptions & Memberships 80,229 52,483 

TasWater Charges 28,737 24,058 

Telecommunications & Internet 21,271 20,507 

Travel & Accommodation 74,013 59,259 

Total other expenses 920,277 809,096 

Accour1ting policy 

Other expenses 

Expenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income when a decrease in future economic benefits 
related to a decrease in asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. 
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Note 4.1 

Note 5 

Note 5.1 

Investment in water corporation 

Opening Balance 
Change in fair value of investment 

Fair Value adjustments on Available-for-Sale Assets 
Total investment in water corporation 

Council has derived returns from the water corporation as disclosed at note 2.10 

Accounting policy 

Investment assets 

2018 
$ 

4,913,633 

63.774 

4,977,407 

2017 
$ 

4,881,608 

32,026 

4,913,633 

Council's investment in TasWater is valued at its fair value at balance date. Fair value was determined by using Council's ownership interest 
against the water corporation's net asset value at balance date. At 30 June 2018, Council continues to hold a 0.31% ownership interest in 
TasWater which is based on Schedule 2 of the Corporation's Constitution which reflects the Council's voting rights. Any unrealised gains 
and losses are recognised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income to an Available-for-sale Fair value reserve each year (refer 
note 9.12). 

Council has classified this asset as an Available-for-sale financial asset as defined in AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement and has followed AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to value 
and present the asset in the financial report. Council's investment is not traded in an active market and is only sensitive to fluctuations in the 
value of TasWater's net assets. 

On 1 May 2018 TasWater and the State Government announced a memorandum of understanding under which the State Government will 
inject $20 million per year for the next ten years into TasWater and in return will become a shareholder ofTasWater. As a shareholder the 
State Government will not receive any dividend distributions. The partnership provides for a reduction in forecast price increases, 
accelerated infrastructure upgrades and a joint focus on major projects. As at lhe dale of these financial statements, the owner councils and 
the State Government were working together on the nature of the future reforms. 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 

Cash at bank 
Cash invested al call 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

Unrestricted funds 
Council's cash, cash equivalents and investments are subject to a number of internal and external 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Mte 5.1) 

Investments (note 5.2) 

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 

Restricted funds 

Trust Funds and Deposits (note 7.2) 
Leave Provisions (note 7.4) 

Reserve Funds Allocated for Specific Future Purposes (note 9.1) 

Restricted Funds (including unexpended grants and capital budgets)(Note 9.1) 

Total restricted funds 

Total unrestri(;ted cash and cash equivalents 
Accounting policy 

Cash and cash equivalents 

300 300 
2,414,410 2,479,433 

5,498 

2,420,208 2,479,734 

2,420,208 2,479,734 

4,356,395 3,847,337 

6,776,603 6,327,071 

357,355 201,037 

275,094 230,370 
2,229,383 1,797,051 

1,547,757 1,743,323 
4,409,590 3,971,780 

2,367,013 2,355,290 

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 
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Note 5.2 

Note 5.3 

Note 5.4 

Note 6 
Note 6.1 

Investments 
Term deposits 
Total investments 

Accounting policy 

Investments 

2018 
$ 

4,356,395 
4,356,395 

Investments, other than investments in associates and property, are measured at cost. These represent mainly term deposits. 

Trade and other receivables 
Current 

Rates debtors 95,784 
Other debtors 304,382 
Net GS T receivable 58,805 
Total trade and other receivables 458,971 

Accounting policy 

Trade and other receivables 

2017 
$ 

3,847,337 
3,847,337 

65,807 
271,291 
29,149 

366,246 

Receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. A provision for impairment is recognised when there i� 
objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred. A provision for impairment on rates has not been established as unpaid rates 
represents a charge against the rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. 

Inventories 
Inventories held for distribution 
Total inventories 

Accounting policy 

Inventories 

906,075 772,799 
906,075 772,799 

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. Other inventories are 
measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Where inventories are acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, the cost shall be the current replacement cost as at the date of
acquisition. 

Non-current assets 
Other assets 
Current 
Prepayments 
Accrued income 
Total 

• Accrued income only includes items that are reciprocal in nature.
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25,466 
123,144 
148,610 

67,686 
97,877 

165,562 
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Note 6 Non Current Assets 
Note 6.2 Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 

Summary 

atcosl 
Less accumulated depreciatior 

at fair value as at 30 June 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total 

Property 

Land 
at fair value as at 30 June 
Total Land 

Buildings 
atfair value as at 30 June 
Less accumulated depreciatior 

Jetties 
at cost 
Less accumulated depreciatior 

Heritage buildings 
al fair value as at 30 June 
Less accumulated depreciatior 

Total Property 

Plant and Equipment 

Plant, machinery and equipment 
al cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Fi:lttures, fittings and furniture 
at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Computers and telecommunications 
at cost 

Less accumulated deprecia1ior 

Total Plant and Equipment 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 
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2018 
$ 

6,393,343 
(2,890,225) 
3,503,118 

104,807,616 
(45,347,721) 
59,459,895 
62,963,013 

3,739,000 
3,739,000 

2,746,013 
(1,046,603) 
1,699,410 

930,706 
(131,089) 
799,617 

56,500 
(30,955) 
25,545 

6,263,571 

4,145,101 
(2,324,917) 
1,820,183 

98,852 
(74,033) 
24,819 

290,044 
(231,503) 

58,541 
1,903,544 

2017 
$ 

6,465,298 
(3,135,852) 
3,329,446 

103,841,122 
(44,103,697) 
59,737,425 
63,066,871 

3,884,000 
3,884,000 

2,954,920 
(1,075,375) 
1,879,545 

930,706 
{116,333) 
814,373 

56,500 
(30,390) 
26,110 

6,604,027 

4,485,702 
(2,612,667) 
1,873,035 

113,283 
(77,868) 
35,415 

286,294 
(212,861) 

73,433 
1,981,883 
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Notes to the Financial Report 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 6.2 Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure (cont.) 

Infrastructure 

Roads 
at fair value as at 30 June 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Bridges 
at fair value as at 30 June 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Aerodrome 
at fair va(ue as at 30 June 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Drainage 
at fair value as at 30 June 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Recreational, leisure and community facilities 
at fair value as at 30 June 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Waste Management 
at cost 
Less accumulated depreciatior 

Total Infrastructure 

Works in progress 

Buildings at cost 
Computers & Telecommunications at cost 
Roads at cost 
Aerodrome at cost 
Drainage at cost 
Recreation and community facilities at cost 
Waste Management at cost 
Total Works in progress 

Total property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 
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2018 
$ 

69,549,029 
(31,264,135) 
38,284,894 

7,627,707 
(4,093,315) 
3,534,392 

18,152,393 
(7,209,975) 
10,942,418 

2,056,894 
(1,380,751) 

676,142 

880,080 
(321,987) 
558,094 

672.452 
(128,683) 
543,770 

54,539,710 

32,652 
31,486 
20,170 

150,569 

13,496 
7,815 

256,187 

62,963,013 

2017 
$ 

68,430,547 
(30,584,030) 
37,846,517 

7,627,707 
(3,959,966) 
3,667,740 

18,142,976 
(6,791.484) 
11,351,492 

1,961,944 
(1,355,279) 

606,665 

782,529 
(307,173) 
475,357 

475,325 
{116,123) 
359,202 

54,306,972 

31,486 
26,924 
6,016 

37,130 
56,868 
15,564 

173,987 

63,066,871 
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Note 6.2 Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure (cont.) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 

Balance at Depreciation Written down 
beginning of Acquisition of and value of Balance at end of 

2018 financial year assets amortisation disposals Transfers financial year 

(note 3.3) 

$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Property 

land 3,884,000 (145,000) 3,739,000 
Totalland 3,884,000 (145,000) 3,739,000 

buildings 1,879,545 25,887 (47,895) (183,333) 25,206 1,699,410 
jellies 814,373 (14,756) 799,617 
heritage buildings 26,110 (565) 25,545 
Total buildings 2,720,028 25,887 (63,216) (183,333) 25,206 2,524,572 
Total proee� 6,604,028 25,887 (63,216) (328,333) 25,206 6,263,572 

Plant and Equipment 

plant, machinery and equipment 1,873,034 299,009 (226.147) (125,713) 1,820,183 
fixtures, fittings and furniture 35,414 (5,394) (5,202) 24,819 
computers and telecommunications 73,433 3,750 (18,642) 58,541 
Total plant and equipment 1,981,882 302,759 (250,182) (130,915) 1,903,543 

Infrastructure 

roads 37,846,517 1,091,558 (680,105) 26,924 38,284,894 
bridges 3,667,741 (133,349) 3,534,392 
aerodrome 11,351,492 9,418 (418,491) 10,942,419 
drainage 606,665 57,819 (25,472) 37,131 676,143 
recreation and community facilities 475,357 74,371 (14,814) 23,180 558,094 
waste mana9ement 359,202 189,023 (12,560) 8,105 543,770 
Total infrastructure 54,306,973 1,422,188 (1,284,791) 95,340 54,539,711 

Works in progress 
buildings 32,652 32,652 
computers and telecommunications 31,486 31,486 
roads 26,924 20,17C (26,924: 20,169 
aerodrome 6,016 144,55� 150,569 
drainage 37,130 (37,131; 0 
recreation and community facilities 56,868 5,015 (48,386; 13,496 
waste management 15,564 35€ (8,105; 7,815 
Total works in erogress 173,987 202,74e (120,547; 256,187 
Total property, plant and equipment and 

63,066,871 1,953,57£ (1,598,189; (459,248: 62,963,013 
infrastructure 
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Note 6.2 Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure (cont.) 

Recol\ciliation of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 

Balance at Revaluation Depreciation Written down 

beginning or Acquisition of increments and value of Balance at end of 

2017 financial year assets !decrements) amortisation disposals Transfers financial year 

(note S. I) {note J,J) 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Property 

land 3,861,090 22,910 3,884,000 
Total land 3,861,090 22,910 3,884,000 

buildings 2,155,079 104,352 {386,803) {51,228) 58,145 1,879,545 
jetties 829,129 {14,756) 814,373 
heritage buildin9s 26,675 (565) 26,110 
Total buildin9s 3,010,883 104,352 (386,803) (66,549) 58,145 2,720,028 
Total prope� 6,871,973 104,352 (363,893) (66,549) 58,145 6,604,028 

Plant and Equipment 
plant. machinery and equipment 2,044,215 225,498 (234,239) (162,441) 1,873,034 
fixtures, fittings and furniture 43,824 {8,409) 35,414 
compulers and telecommunications 77,366 13,585 (17,518) 73,433 
Total plant and equipment 2,165,406 239,083 (260,166) (162,441) 1,981,881 

Infrastructure 

roads 37,888,708 637,813 (680,105) 100 37,846,517 
bridges 3,799,256 (131,515) 3,667,741 
aerodrome 11,605,384 136,416 (415,264) 24,955 11,351,492 
drainage 632,137 (25,472) 606,665 
recreation and Community Facilities 381,619 66,707 (24,533) (14,814} 66,378 475,357 
waste Management 371,762 (12,560) 359,202 
Total infrastructure 54,678,866 840,937 (24,533) (1,279.730) 91,433 54,306,973 

Works in progress 

buildings 58,145 (58,145) 
computers and Telecommunications 31,486 31,486 
roads 100 26,924 (100) 26,924
aerodrome 24,955 6,016 (24,955} 6,016 
drainage 28,170 8,960 37,130 
recreation and Community Facilities 70,051 53,195 (66,378} 56,868 
waste Management 15,564 15,564 
Total works in er£9ress 181,420 142,145 p49,578) 173,988 

Total property, plant and equipment and 63,897,665 1,326,516 (388,426} (1,606,445) (162,441) 63,066,871 
infrastructure 
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Note 6.2 Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure (cont.) 

Accounting pol icy 

Recognition and measurement of assets 

Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the 
acquisition. 

Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by Council 
valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell the asset ir 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during construction, and 
an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads. 

The following classes of assets have been recognised. In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits detailed below have applied when 
recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless otheiwise stated are consistent with the prior year: 

Land 
land 

Buildings 
buildings 
building improvements 
heritage buildings 

Plant and Equipment 
plant, machinery and equipment 
fixtures, fittings and furniture 
computers and telecommunications 

Roads 
road pavements and seals 
road substructure 
road formation and earthworks 
road kerb, channel and minor culverts 

Bridges 
bridges deck 
bridges substructure 

Other Infrastructure 
drainage 
recreational, leisure and community facilities 
waste management 

Aerodrome Infrastructure 
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Threshold 

$ 

10000 

10000 

10000 

10000 

2000 

2000 

2000 

10000 

10000 

10000 

10000 

10000 

10000 

10000 

10000 

10000 

10000 
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Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 6.2 Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure (cont.) 

Revaluation 
Council has adopted the following valuation bases for its non-current assets: 

Land 
Buildings 
Jetties 
Heritage Buildings 
Plant. Machinery and Equipment 
Fix1ures, Fittings and Furniture 
Computers and Telecommunications 
Roads 
Bridges 
Aerodrome 
Drainage 
Recreation and Community Facilities 
Waste Management 
Accounting policy (cont.) 

fair value 
fair value 

cos! 

fair value 
cosl 
COSI 
cosl 

fair value 
fair value 
fair value 
fair value 
fair value 

cosl 

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipmen1, including fixtures, fittings and furniture, are 
measured at their fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Prope,ty, Plant & Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. At balance date, Council 
reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset class materially approximated its fair value. 
Where the carrying value m ateriafly differed from the fair value at balance date the class of asset was revalued. 

In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis to ensure valuations represent fair value. 
Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only occur if an external change in 
the restrictions or limitations of use on an asset result in changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. 

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that an increment 
reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up lo 
the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation 
surplus for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Within lhe same class of 
assets, revaluatiori increments and decrements within the year are offset. 

Impairment of assets 
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income under other expenses 
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income under other revenue. 

Land under roads 

Council has not taken up the value of land under roads for 201712018 
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Note 7 Current liabilities 
Note 7.1 Trade and other payables 

Trade payables 
Accrued expenses 
Total trade and other payables 

Note 7.2 Trust funds and deposits 
Refundable building bonds 
Trust funds for community groups 
Trust funds for Bursaries 
Other trust funds 
Total trust funds and deposits 

Accounting po I icy 

Trust funds and deposits 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

2018 2017 
$ $ 

419,29? 126.317 
207,654 100,7B5 
626,951 227,102 

156,787 
161,997 165,422 
30,250 30,144 
8,322 5,471 

357,355 201,037 

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as Trust funds until they are 
returned or forfeited. 

Note 7.3 Other liabilities 
Current 

Other Liabilities 20,665 15.713 
20,665 15,713 

Non-current 

Other Liabilities 4,176 3,959 

Total other liabilities 24,841 19,672 

Note 7.4 Provisions 
Annual leave Long service Total 

leave 

2018 $ $ $ 

Balance at beginning of the financial year 122,296 108,074 230,370 
Additional provisions 63,635 38,368 102,003 
Decreases to provisions (26,857) !30,422) {57,279) 
Balance at the end ol the financial year 159,074 116,020 275,094 

2017 
Balance at beginning of the financial year 119,300 110,374 229,674 
Additional provisions 99,388 (1,311) 98,077 
Decreases to provisions {96,392) {989) (97,382) 
Balance at the end of the financial year 122,296 108,074 230,370 

2018 2017 

(a) Employee benefits $ $ 
(i) Current
Annual leave 159,074 122,296 
Long seivice leave 69.772 61,711 

228,846 184,008 
(ii) Non-current
Long service leave 46,248 46,363 

46,248 46,363 
Aggregate carrying amount of employee benefits: 
Current 228,846 184,008 
Non-current 46,248 46,363 

275,094 230,370 
The following assumptions were adopted in measuring 
Weighted average increase in employee costs 3.00% 3.50% 
Weig hied average discount rates 2.255% 2.18% 
Weighted average settlement period 12 12 
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Note 7 .4 Provisions (cont.) 

(ill) Cu rrent 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 201 B 

A!I annual leave and the long service leave entitlements representing 10 or more years of 
continuous service 

- Short-term employee benefits, that fall due within 12 months after the end of the period
- other long-telTTl employee benefits that do not fal l due within 12 months after the end of the

period measured at present value 

(iv) Non-current
Long service leave representing less than 1 0  years of contin uous service measured at present
value

(v) Employee Numbers (Ful l  time equivalent) 

Accounting policy 

Employee benefits 
i) Short term obligations 

20 1 8  
$ 

159 ,074 

69,772 
228,846 

46,363 

33 

201 1 

$ 

1 22,296 

6 1 ,71 1 
1 84,008 

46 ,36:? 

Liabil ities for wages and salaries, includ ing non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be 
wholly settled within 1 2  monlhs after 1he end of the period in wh ich the employees render the related service are recognised in 
respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the l iabi lities are settled. The liabil ity for annual leave is recogn ised in the provision for employee benefits. All other short
telTTl employee benefit obligations are presented as payables. 

ii) Other long term employee benefit obligations 

The liabi l ity for long service leave and annual leave which is not expected to be whol ly settled within 12 months after the end of 
1he period in wh ich the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measurec 
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, 
experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the 
end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The obligations are presented as current liabil ities in the statement of financial position if the entity does not have an 
unconditional rig ht to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actua! 
settlement is expected to occur. 

No accrual is made for sick leave as Council experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each reporting period is 
less than the entitlement accruing in that period , and this experience is expected to recur in future reporting periods. Council 
does r10t make payment for untaken sick leave. 

iv) Defined benefit plans

A liabil ity or asset in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans would ordinarily be recogn ised in the statement of financial 
position ,  and measured as the present value of the define<! benefit obligation at the reporting date plus unrecognised actuarial 
gains ( less unrecognised actuarial losses) less the fair value of the superannuation fund's assets at that date and any 
unrecognised past service cost. The present value of the defined benefit obl igation is based on expected future payments which 
arise from membership of the fund to the reporting date, calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method . Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. However, when this information is not reliably available, Council accounts for its obl igations to defined benefit 
plans on the same basis a:: its obligations to defined contribution plans i.e as an expense when it becomes payable. 

Council makes superannuation contributions for a number of its employees to the Quadrant oefined Benefits Fund (lhe Fund) ,  
a sub-fu nd of the Tasplan Superannuation Fund (Tasplan ) . The Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund has been classified as a 
multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Fund's assets and l iabilities are pooled and are not al located by employer, the Actuary 
is unable to allocate benefit l iabilities, assets and costs between employers. As provided under paragraph 34 of AASB 1 1 9  
Employee Benefits , Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions. 

v) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable . P repaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

vi) Landfill Restoration
Council has two operating landfill sites, one of which is for inert waste only. licence conditions require that they be remediatec
as product is received. No restoration provision exists.
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Note 8 Nan-current liabilities 

Note 8.1 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

Current 

Borrowings . secured 

Non-current 

Borrowings • secured 

Total 

Borrowings 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 201 B 

The malurily profile for Council's borrowings is: 

Not later than one year 

Later than one year and not laler than five yec 

Later than five years 

Total 

Accounting policy 

Interest bearing liabilities 

197,022 

197,022 

1,189,004 

1,189,004 

1,386,026 

197,022 

556,597 

632,407 

1,386,026 

220,871 

220,871 

1,386,02� 

1,386,025 

1,606,896 

220,871 

658,284 

727,741 

1,606,896 

The borrowing capacily of Council is limited by tl1e Local Government Act 1993 . Interest bearing liabilities are initially 
recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition these liabilities are measured at 
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the liabilily using the effective interest method. 
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Note 9 Other financial information 
Note 9.1 Reserves 

(a) Asset revaluation reserve 
2018

Property 
Land 
Buildings 

Infrastructure 
Roads and Bridges 
Drainage 
Aerodrome 

Total asset revaluation reserve 

2017 
Property 
land 
Buildings 

Infrastructure 
Roads and Bridges 
Stormwater 
Aerodrome 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Balance at 

beginning of reporting 

year 

$ 

3,210,166 
25,706 

3,235,871 

30,604,369 
414,859 

7,877,445 
38,896,673 

42,132,544 

3,187,256 
437,042 

3,624,297 

30,604,369 
414,859 

7,877,445 
38,896,673 

Increment 

$ 

22,910 

22,910 

(Decrement) 

$ 

(411,336) 
(411,336) 

Balance at end of 

reporting year 

$ 

3,210,166 
25,706 

3,235,871 

30,604,369 
414,859 

7,877,445 
38,896,673 

42,132,544 

3,210,166 
25,706 

3,235,871 

30,604,369 
414,859 

7,877,445 
38,896,673 

Total asset revaluation reserve 42,520,970 22,910 (411,336) 42,132,544 
The asset revaluation reserve was established to capture the movements in asset valuafions upon the periodic revaluation cf Council's assets. 

(b) Fair value reserve 
2018
Available-for-sale assets
Investment in water corporation 
Total fair value reserve 

2017 

Available-for-sale assets 

365,420 63,774 
365,420 63,774 

Investment in water corporation 333,395 32,025 
Total fair value reserve 333,395 32,025 
The available-for-sale financial asset reserve was established to capture the fair value movements in Council's water corporation investment. 
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Note 9.1 Reserves (cont.)

Notes to the Financial Report 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Balance at 
beginning of reporting 

year Increment (Decrement) 
(c) Other reserves 
2018 
Discretionary Reserves 

Lighthouse Reserve 
Community Reserve 
Naracoopa Jetty Reserve 
Grassy Mine Infrastructure Reserve 
Housing Reserve 

Other reserves 
Employee entitlements reserve 
Restricled funds 
Total Other reserves 

Total other reserves 

2017 
Discretionary Reserves 
Lighthouse Reserve 
Community Reserve 
Naracoopa Jetty Reserve 
Grassy Mine Infrastructure Reserve 
Housing Reserve 

Other reserves 
Employee entitlements reserve 
Restricted funds 
Total Other reserves 

Total other reserves 

$ 

160,895 
1.456,814 

120,905 
58,437 

1,797,051 

230,370 
1,743,323 
1,973,693 

3,770,744 

165,814 
1,488,609 

80,163 
56,969 

1,791,555 

249,586 
203,771 
453,357 

2,244,912 

$ 

3.413 
134,413 
45,565 
1,240 

403,491 
588,122 

44,724 
1,119,671 
1,164,395 

1,752,517 

4,274 
137,369 
45,066 

1,468 

188,177 

1,666,656 
1,666,656 

1,854,833 

Discretionary reserves are reserves that provide capital for the expansion of Council's infrastructure or capital base. 
Statutory reserves are maintained for employee entitlements and restricted funds for unexpected grant revenue. 

Total Reserves 
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$ 

(5,019) 
(98,240) 
(5,711) 

(46,822) 

(155,792] 

(1,315,237) 
(1,315,237] 

(1,471,028) 

(9,193) 
(169,164) 

(4,324) 

(182,681) 

(19,216) 
(127,104) 
(146,320) 

(329,001) 

2018 
$ 

46,613,972 

Balance at end of 
reporting year 

$ 

159,290 
1.492,988 

160.760 
12,854 

403,491 
2,229,383 

275,094 
1,547.757 
1,822,851 

4,052,234 

160,895 
1,456,814 

120,905 
58,437 

1,797,051 

230,370 
1,743,323 
1,973,693 

3,770,744 

2017 
$ 

46,268,708 
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Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Note 9.2 

Note 9.3 

2018 2017 
s $ 

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus (deficit) 
Results from continuing operations 169,541 724,233 
Depreciation/amortisation 1,598,189 1,606,445 
(Profit)noss on disposal of Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 20,620 119,577 
Capital grants received specifically for new or upgraded assets (517,006! (532,898) 
Other Contributions (46,953: (154,092) 
Change in assets and liabilities: 
Decreasellincrease) in trade and other receivables (92,725; (130,836) 
Decrease/(increase) in other assets 16,952 (105,687) 

Decrease/(increase) in inventories (133,276; 410,789 
lncrease/(decrease) in trade and other payables 399,849 (45,993) 
lncrease/(decrease) in other liabilities 5,168 (756) 

lncrease/(decrease) in provisions 44,724 697 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 1,465,083 1,891,480 

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 

Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Statement of Cash Flows as 
cash flows from financing activities. 

2018 

Balance at start of period 
Cash Received 
Cash Repayments 

Balance at close of period 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

2018 2017 
$ $ 

1,606,896 975,036 
822,000 

(220,870) p90, 140) 
1,386,026 1,606,896 

Note 9.4 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 5.1) 2,420,208 2,479,734 
Total reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 

Note 9.5 Financing arrangements 
Bank overdraft 
Used facilities 
Unused facilities 

Note 9.6 Superannuation 

2,420,208 2,479,734 

220,000 220,000 
24,000 24,000 

244,000 244,000 

Council makes superannuation contributions for a number of its employees to the Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund (the Fund), a sub-fund of the Tasplan 
Superannuation Fund (Tasplan). The Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund has been classified as a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Fund's assets 
and liabilities are pooled and are not allocated by employer, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers. As 
provided under paragraph 34 of AASB 119 Employee Benefits, Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions. 

For the year ended 30 June 2018 the Council contributed 9.5% of employees' gross income to the Fund. Assets accumulate in the fund to meet member 
benefits as they accrue, and if assets within the fund are insufficient to satisfy benefits payable, the Council is required to meet its share of the deficiency. 

Rice Warner Pty ltd undertook the last acruarial review of the Fund at 30 June 2017. The review disclosed that at that time the net market value of assets 
available for funding member benefits was $58,940,000, the value of vested benefits was $51,170,000, the surplus over vested benefits was $7,770,000, 
the value of total accrued benefits was $50,606,000, and the number of members was 134. These amounts relate to all members of the fund al the date 
of valuation and no asset or liability is recorded in the Tasplan Super's financial statements for Council employees. 

The financial assumptions used to calculate the Accrued Benefits for the Fund were: 
■ Net Investment Return 7.0% p.a. 
■ Salary Inflation 4.0% p.a. 
■ Price Inflation nla 

The actuarial review concluded that: 
■ The value of assets of the Fund was adequate to meet the liabilities of the Fund in respect of vested benefits as at 30 June 20147 
■ The value of assets of the Fund was adequate lo meet the value of the liabilities of the Fund in respect of accrued benefits as at 30 June 2017. 
■ Based on the assumpUons used, and assuming the Employer contributes at the levels described below, the value of the assets is expected to 

continue to be adequate to meet the value of the liabilities of the Fund in respect of vested benefits at all times during the period up to 30 June 2017 

The Actuary recommended that in future the Council contribute 9.5% of salaries in 2017/18 and 0% from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021. 
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The Actuary will continue to u ndertake a brief review of the financial position the Fund at the end of each financial year to confirm that the contribution 
rates remain appropriate. The next full trien nial actuarial review of the Fund will have an effective date of 30 June 2020 and is expected to be completed 
late in 2020. 
Council also contributes to other accumulation schemes on behalf of a number of employees; however the Council h as no ongoing responsibi l ity to make 
good any deficiencies that may occur in those schemes. 

During the year Counci l made the required superannuation contributions for all el igible employees to an appropriate complying superan nuation fu nd as 
required by the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1 992 . 

As required in terms of paragraph 148 of MSB 1 1 9  Employee Bene/its , Council discloses the following details: 
■ The 2017  actuarial review used the "aggregate" fu nding method. This is a standard actu arial funding method .  The results from this method were

tested by projecting future fund assets and l iabi l ities for a range of future assumed investment retu rns. The funding method used is consistent with
the method used at the previous actuarial review in 2014. 

Under the aggregate funding method of finan cing the benefits , the stabi l ity of the Counci ls' contributions over lime depends on how closely the
Fund's actu al experience matches the expected experience. If the actual experience differs from that expected, the Councils' contribution rate may
need to be adjusted accordingly to ensure the Fund remains on course towards financing members' benefits.

■ In terms of Rule 27.4 of the Tasplan Trust Deed (Trust Deed), there is a risk that employers within the Fund may incu r an additional liabi l i ty when an
Employer ceases to participate in th e Fund at a time  when the assets of the Fund are less than members' vested benefits. Each member of th e 
Fund who is an employee of the Employer who is ceasing lo Participate Is required to be provided with a benefit at least equal to their vested benefit
in terms of Rule 27.4 {b) (A). However, there is no provision in the Trust Deed requ iring an employer to make contr ibutions other than its regu lar 
contributions u p to the date of cessation of contributions. This issue can be resolved by the Trustee seeking an Actuarial Certificate in terms of Ru le
26.5 identifying a deficit and the Trustee determ ining in terms of Ru le 26.J(c) that the part icular employer shou ld make the payment required to 
make good any shortfall before the cessation of participation is approved.

■ The application of Fund assets on Tasplan being wound-up is set out in Ru le 4 1 .4 .  This Rule provides that expenses and taxation liabili ties should
have first call on the available assets. Additional assets will initially be applied for the benefit of the then remaining members and/or their
Dependants in such manner as the Trustee considers eq uitable and appropriate in accordance with the Appl icable Requirements (broadly,
su perannuation and taxation legislative requirements and other requ irements as determined by the regulators) . 

The Trust Deed does not contemplate the Fund withdrawing from Tasplan. However it is likely that Rule 27.4 would be applied in this case (as
detailed above). 

■ The Fund is a defined benefit Fund.
■ The Quadrant Denned Benefits Fund has been classified as a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Fund's assets and liabilities are pooled and

are not allocated by employer, the Actuary is u nable to al locate benefit liabili ties, assets and costs between employers. Thus the Fund is not able to
prepare standard MSB 1 1 9  defined benefit reporting . 

■ During the reporting period the amount of contributions paid to defined benefits schemes was $ 1 ,310 (2016- 1 7 ,  $6,935), and the amount paid to 
accumulation schemes was $200,932 (201 6-1 7 ,  $ 1 92, 760). 

■ During the next reporting period the expected amount of contributions to be paid to defined benefits schemes is $0 ,  and the amount to be paid to
accumu lation schemes is $233,000.
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Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 
Note 9.6 Superannuation (cont.) 

Note 9.7 

■ As reported on the first page of this note, Assets exceeded accrued benefits as at the date of the last actuarial review, 30 June 2017. Moderate 
investment returns, since that date, make it quite probable that this is still the position. The financial position of the Fund will be fully investigated at 
the actuarial review as at 30 June 2020. 

■ An analysis of the assets and vested benefits of sub-funds participating in the Scheme, prepared by Rice Warner Ply Ltd as at 30 June 2017, 
showed that the Fund had assets of $58.9 million and members' Vested Benefits were $51.2 million. These amounts represented 0.7% and 0.6% 
respectively of the corresponding total amounts for Tasplan. 

■ As at 30 June 2017 the fund had 134 members and the tolal employer contributions and member contributions for lhe year ending 30 June 2017 
were $1,777,084 and $267,506 respectively. 

Fund 
Defined benefits fund 
Employer contributions to Quadrant 

Accumulation funds 
Employer contributions to Quadranl 
Employer contributions to other 

Commitments 
Contractual commitments 

Contractual commitments at end of financial year but not recognised in the financial report are as follows 
Grassy Town Maintenance Contract 
Airport Cleaning Contract 
Cleaning contractors 
Total contractual commitments 

2018 

$ 

1,310 
1,310 

29,34(1 
171,59:; 
200,932 

22,00C 
36,00G 

196,441:! 
254,448 

2017 

$ 

6,935 
6,935 

42,183 
150,578 
192,760 

24,20C 
78,00C 
10,50C 

112,70C 

Note 9.8 Operating Leases 

(a) Operating lease commitments 

At the reporting date, Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the lease of equipment and land and buildings for 
use within Council's activities {these obligations are not recognised as liabilities): 

Not later than one year 
Later than one year and not later th an five years 

Note 9.9 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Contingent liabilities 
There is currently a legal matter which have costs claims altached. 

10,920 
27,451 
38,371 

10,92[ 
38,371 
49,291 

As this matters are yet to be finalised, and the financial outcomes are unable to be reliably estimated, no allowance for these contingencies has been 
made in lhe financial report. 

Council operates a landfill at Parenna. Council will have to carry out site rehabilitation works in the future. At balance date Council is unable to accurately 
assess the financial implications of such works. 

Guarantees for loans to other entities 
Council does not act as a guarantor for lhe borrowings of any other entity. 
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Note 9.10 Financial Instruments 

(a} Accounting Policy, terms and conditions 

Recognised 
financial 
instruments 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

Note Accounting Policy 

5.1 Cash on hand and at bank and money market call 
accounts are valued at face value. 

Interest is recognised as il accrues. 

Investments and bills are valued at cost. 

Investments are held to maximise interest returns of 
surplus cash. 

Interest revenues are recognised as they accrue. 

Managed funds are measured al market value. 

Trade and other receivables 

Other debtors 5.3 Receivables are carried at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. A provision for impairment is 
recognised when there is objective evidence that an 
impairment loss has occurred. 
Collectability of overdue accounts is assessed on an 
ongoing basis. 

Available for sale financial assets 

Investment in 
Water 
Corporation 

Financial Liabilities 

Trade and other 
payables 

Interest-bearing 
loans and 
borrowings 

Bank overdraft 

4.1 The investment in TasWater is valued at its fair value at 
balance date. Fair value was determined by using 
Council's ownership interest against the water 
corporation's net asset value at balance date. 

7.1 Liabilities are recognised for amounts lo be paid in the 
future for goods and services provided to Council as at 
balance date whether or not invoices have been received. 

8.1 Loans are carried at their principal amounts, which 
represent the present value of future cash flows 
associated with servicing the debt. Interest is accrued 
over the period it becomes due and recognised as part of 
payables. 

5.1 Overdrafts are recognised at the principal amount. 
Interest is charged as an expense as it accrues. 
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Terms and Conditions 

On call deposits returned a floating interest rate of 0.65% 
{1.3% in 2016-17). The interest rate at balance date was 
0.65% {1.4%). 

Funds returned fixed interest rate of between 0.50% 
{2.12%), and 2.68% (2.71 % ) net of fees. 

General debtors are unsecured. Credit terms are based 
on 30 days. 

Investment in TasWater provided return of 0.31% 
excluding unrealised gains/losses 

General Creditors are unsecured, not subject to interest 
charges and are normally settled within 30 days of invoice 
receipt. 

Borrowings are secured by way of mortgages over the 
general rates of the Council. 
The weighted average interest rate on borrowings is 
4. 12% {4.09% in 2016-17).

The overdraft is subject to annual review. 
It is secured by a mortgage over Gou ncil's general rates 
and is repayable on demand. 
No overdraft was utilised during 17/18 or 16/17. 
The interest rate as at balance date was 8.15% (8.15%). 
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Note 9.10 Financial Instruments (cont.) 

(b) Interest Rate Risk

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

The exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at balance date
are as follows:

2018 
Floating Fixed interest maturing in: 

Weighted interest 1 year or Over 1 to 5 More than 5 Non-interest 
average rate less years years bearing Total 

interest rate $ $ s $ $ $ 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 0.65% 2,419,908 300 2,420,208 
Other financial assets 1.87% 4,356,395 4,356,395 
Trade and other receivables 8.72% 95,784 363,187 458,971 
Investment in water corporation 4,977.407 4,977,407 
Total financial assets 2,515,692 4,356,395 5,340,893 12,212,981 

Financial liabilities 
Trade and other payables 626,951 626,951 
Trust funds and deposits 357,355 357,355 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4.12% 197,022 556,597 632,407 1,386,025 
Total financial liabilities 197,022 556,597 632,407 984,306 2,370,331 

Net financial assets (liabilities) 2,515,692 4,159.374 (556,597) (632,407) 4,356,588 9,842,650 

2017 
Floating Fixed interest maturing in: 

Weighted interest 1 year or Over 1 to 5 More than 5 Non-interest 
average rate less years years bearing Total 

interest rate $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 130% 2,479,433 300 2,479,733 
Investments 2.49% 3,847,337 3,847,337 
Trade and other receivables 8.40% 65,807 271,290 337,097 
Investment in water corporation 4,913,633 4,913,633 
Total financial assets 2,545,239 3,847,337 5,185,223 11,577,800 

Financial liabillties 
Trade and other payables 227,102 227,102 
Trust funds and deposits 201,037 201,037 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 409% 220,871 658,284 727.741 1,606,896 
Total financial liabilities 220,871 658,284 727,741 428,139 2,035,035 

Net financial assets (liabilities} 2,545,239 3,626,467 (658,284) (727,741! 4,757,084 9,542,764 
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Note 9.10 Financial Instruments {cont.) 

(c) Fair Value 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

The aggregate net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at balance date are as follows:

Total carrying amount as per Aggregate net fair value 

Financial Instruments 
Balance Sheet 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

$ $ $ $ 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,420,208 2,479,734 2,420,208 2,479,734 
Investments 4,356,395 3,847,337 4,356,395 3,847,337 
Rates 95,784 65,807 95,784 65,807 
Trade and Other Receivables 363,187 271,290 363,187 271,290 
Investments in water corporation 4,977,407 4,913,633 4,977,407 4,913,633 
Total financial assets 12,212,981 11,577,801 12,212,981 11,577,801 

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 626,951 227,102 626,951 227,102 
Trust funds and deposits 357,355 201,037 357,355 201,037 
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 1,386,025 1,606,896 1,396,343 1,606,896 
Total financial liabilities 2,370,331 2,035,035 2,380,649 2,035,035 

(d) Credit Risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is represented by the carrying amount
of those assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position.

(e) Risks and mitigation 
The risks associated with our main financial instruments and our policies for minimising these risks are detailed below.

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Council's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to 
foreign currency risk. Components of market risk to which we are exposed are discussed below. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuate due to changes 
in market interest rates. Interest rate risk arises from interest bearing financial assets and liabilities that we use. Non derivative interest bearing 
assets are predominantly short term liquid assets. Our interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long term loans and borrowings at fixed rates 
which exposes us to fair value interest rate risk. 

Our loan borrowings are sourced from major Australian banks by a tender process. Finance leases are sourced from major Australian financial 
institutions. Overdrafts are arranged with major Australian banks. We manage interest rate risk on our net debt portfolio by: 

- ensuring access to diverse sources of funding;
- reducing risks of refinancing by managing in accordance with target maturity profiles; and
- setting prudential limits on interest repayments as a percentage of rate revenue.
We manage the interest rate exposure on our debt portfolio by appropriate budgeting strategies and obtaining approval for borrowings from the
Department of Treasury and Finance each year.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1993. We manage in1erest rate risk by 
adopting an investment policy that ensures: 

- conformity with State and Federal regulations and standards,
- capital protection,
- appropriate liquidity,
- diversification by credit rating, financial institution and investment product,
• monitoring of return on investment,
- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.

Maturity will be staggered to provide for interest rate variations and to minimise interest rate risk. 
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Credit risk 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obi igations under a financial instrument and cause Council to make a financia 
loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in our Statement of Financial Position. To help manage this risk: 

- we have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities we deal with; 
- we may require collateral where appropriate; and 
- we only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our Investment policy.

Credit risk arises from Council's financial assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other receivables. Council's exposure 
to credit risk arises from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. 
Exposure at balance date is addressed in each applicable policy note. Council generally trades with recognised, creditworthy third parties, and as 
such collateral is generally not requested, nor is it Council's policy to securitise its trade and other receivables. 
It is Council's policy that some customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures including an assessment of 
their credit rating, financial position, past experience and industry reputation. 
In addition, receivable balance are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that Council's exposure to bad debts is not significant. 

Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the Statement of Financial Position, such as when Council 
provides a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 9.9. 

Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired 
Financial 

Institutions 

2018 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
Investments and other financial assets 
Total contrac;tual financial assets 

2017 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
Investments and other financial assets 
Total contractual financial assets 

Current (not yet due) 
Past due by up to 30 days 
Past due between 31 and 180 days 
Past due between 181 and 365 days 

(AAA credit rating) 

2,419,908 

4,356,395 
6,776,303 

2,479,434 

3,847,337 
6,326,772 

Past due by more Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 
Total Trade & Other Receivables 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements: 
- we will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the date;
- we will be forced to sell financial assets at a value which is less than what they are worth; or 
- we may be unable to settle or recover a financial assets at all.

To help reduce these risks we: 

Government 
agencies 

(BBBB credit 

rating) 

Other 

(min BBB credit 
rating) 

458,971 

458,971 

366,246 

366,246 

2018 

$ 

280,652 
7,079 

104,164 
4,844 

62,232 
458,971 

- have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;

• have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;

- have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;

- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and 

Total 

2,419,908 
458,971 

4,356,395 
7,235,274 

2,479,434 
366,246 

3,847,337 
6,693,018 

2017 

$ 

116.131 
167,990 
47,284 
10,873 
23,965 

366,243 

- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal repayments to rate revenue. 

The Council's exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and current assessment of risk 

The table below lists the contractual maturities for Financial Liabilities. 

These amounts represent the discounted cash flow payments (ie principal only). 
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2018 

Trade and other 
payables 
Trust funds and 
deposits 
Interest-bearing 
loans and 
borrowings 
Total financial 
liabilities 

2017 

Trade and other 
payables 
Trust funds and 
deposits 
Interest-bearing 
loans and 
borrowings 
Total financial 
liabilities 

6mths 6-12

or less months 

$ $ 

626,951 

8,322 156,787 

98,511 98,511 

733,783 255,298 

6 mths 6-12
or less months 
$'000 $'000 

227,130 -

5,471 

110,436 110,436 

343,037 110.436 

Notes to the Financial Report 
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1-2 2-5

years years 

$ $ 

-

302,037 254,559 

302,037 254,559 

1-2 2-5

years years
$'000 $'000 

. -

194,207 464,076 

194,207 464,076 
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>S

years 

$ 

. 

192,246 

632.407 

824,654 

>5

years 
$'000 

195,566 

727,741 

923,307 

Contracted Carrying 

Cash Flow Amount 

$ $ 

626,951 626,951 

357,355 357,355 

1,386,025 1,386,025 

2,370,331 2,370,331 

Contracted Carrying 
Cash Flow Amount 

$'000 $'000 

227,130 227,130 

201,037 201,037 

i 

1,606,896 1,606,896 I 
I 

2,035,063 2,035,063 
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(f) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the financial 
markets, the Council believes lhe following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months (Base rates are sourced from Reserve 
Bank of Australia): 

-A parallel shift of+ 1% and -1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 1.5%.
The table below discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instruments held by Council at year-end, if the
above movements were to occur.

Interest rate risk 
-1% +1%

-100 basis points + 100 basis points
Profit Equity Profit Equity 

2018 $ $ $ $ $ 

Financial assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,420,208 (24,202) (24,202) 24,202 24,202 
Investments 4,356,395 (43,564) (43,564) 43,564 43,564 
Trade and other receivables 458,971 (4,590) (4,590) 4,590 4,590 
Financial liabilities: 
Interest-bearing loans and 1,386,025 (13,860) (13,860) 13,860 13,860 

196 448 
Interest rate risk 

-1 % +1%
-1 OD basis points +100 basis points
Profit Equity Profit Equity 

2017 $ $ $ $ $ 

Financial assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,479,434 (24,794) (24,794) 24,794 24,794 
Investments 3,847,337 (38,473) (38,473) 38,473 38,473 
Trade and other receivables 366,246 (3,662) (3,662} 3,662 3,662 
Financial liabilities: 

lnterest-bearinci loans and 1,606,896 (16,069) (16,069 16,069 16,069 
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Note 9.11 Fair Value Measurements 
Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis: 

Property, infrastructure plant and equipment 
- Land 
- Buildings. including heritage buildings 
- Roads
- Bridges 
-Aerodrome 
- Other infrastructure 

Council does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis and does not hold any assets classified as assets 
held for sale. 

(a) Fair Value Hierarchy
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a level in the fair value 
hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities thal 
the entity can access at the measurement date. 

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

The table below shows the assigned level for each asset and liability held at fair value by the Council. The table presents the Council's 
assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2018. 
The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, 
and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the assel 
is included in level 3. This is the case for Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market 
for similar or identical assets These assets are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs. 

As at 30 June 2018 
Note Level1 Level2 Level3 Total 

Recurring fair value measurements $ $ $ $ 

Land 6.2 3,739,000 3,739,000 
Buildings including heritage buildings 6.2 1,699,41 D 25,545 1,724,955 
Roads 6.2 38,284,894 38,284,894 
Bridges 6.2 3,534,392 3,534,392 
Drainage 6.2 676,142 676,142 
Aerodrome 6.2 10,942,418 10,942,418 
Other Infrastructure 6.2 558,094 558,094 
Investment in water corporatior 4,977,407 4,977,407 

5,438,41C 58,998,892 64,437,302 

As at 30 June 2017 
Note Level 1 Level2 Levell Total 

Recurring fair value measurements $ $ $ $ 

Land 6.2 3,884,00C 3,884,000 
Buildings including heritage buildings 6.2 1,879,545 26,110 1,905,655 
Roads 6.2 37,846,517 37,846,517 
Bridges 6.2 3,667,740 3,667,740 
Drainage 6.2 606,665 606,665 
Aerodrome 6.2 11,351,492 11,351,492 
Other Infrastructure 6.2 475,357 475,357 
Investment in water corporation 4,913,633 4,913,633 

5,763,544 58,887,514 64,651,059 
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Note 9.1 1 Fair Value Measurements (cont.) 

Transfers between levels of the hierarchy 

Notes to the Financial Report 
For the Year Ended 30 June 201 8  

Council 's policy is to recognise transfers i n  and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 dur ing the year, nor between levels 2 and 3. 

(b) Highest and best use
All assets valued at fair val ue in this note are being used for the i r  hig hest and best use.

(c) Valuation techn iques and significant inputs used to derive fair values
Land
Valuation of land (excluding land under roads) were undertaken by the Valuer General as at 1 July 20 1 6. The valuation of land is at fair 
value, being market val ue based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning provisions .

Buildings 
Valuation of bu i ldings were undertaken by the Valuer General as at 1 July 20 1 6 .  The valuation of buildings is at fair value based on gross 
replacement cost less accumu la led depreciation at the date of valuation. 

Infrastructure assets 
All Council infrastructure assets were fair valued us ing written down current replacement cost. This valuation compr ises the assefs current 
replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to re1Iect the already consumed or expired 
future economic benefits of the asset. Council first determined the gross cost of replacing the fu l l service potential of the asset and then 
adj usted th is amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset. 

CRC was measured by reference to the lowest cost at wh ich the g ross future economic benefits of the asset could currently be obtained in 
the normal course of business . The resulti ng valuation reflects the cost of replacing the existing economic benefits based on an efficient 
set of modern equivalent assets to achieve the required level of service output. 

The unit rates ( labour and materials) and quantities applied to determ ine the CRC of an asset or asset component were based on a 
"Greenfield" assumption meaning that the CRC was determined as the full cost of replacement with a new asset including components that 
may not need to be replaced , s uch as earthworks. 

The level of accumulated depreciation for infrastructure assets was determined based on the age of the asset and the usefu l life adopted 
by Council for the asset type. Estimated usefu l  lives and residual val ues are disclosed in Note 6.2. 

The calcu lation of DRC involves a n umber of inputs that require judgement and are therefore classed as unobservable. While these 
judgements are made by qual ified and experienced staff, different judgements could result in a different valuation . 

The methods for calculating CRC are described under individual asset categories below. 

Roads 
Roads have been valued by Johnstone, McGee & Gandy Pty Ltd for the year ended 30 June 20 1 2. Council categorises its road 
infrastructure into urban and rural roads and then further s ub-categorises these into sealed and unsealed roads . All road segments are 
then componentised into formation , pavement, sub-pavement and seal (where appl icable) .  Council assumes that envi ronmental factors 
s uch as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each segment. Council a(so assumes a segment is designed and 
constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials . 

CRC is based on the road area multiplied by a un i t  price; the un it price being an estimate of labour and material inputs , services costs , and 
overhead al locations. For internal construction estimates ,  material and services prices are based on existing suppl ier contract rates or 
suppl ier price l isls and labour wage rates are based on Council 's Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA) . Where construction is 
outsourced, CRC is based on the average of completed sim ilar projects over the last few years. 

Bridges 
A full val uation of bridges assets was undertaken by independent val uers, Auspan , effective 29 January 20 1 8. Each bridge is assessed 
individual ly and componentised into sub-assets representing the deck and sub-structure.The valuation is based on the material type used 
for construction and the deck and sub-structure area. 

Drainage 
A full val uation of drainage infrastructure was undertaken by Council 's Techn ical Offcier, effective 30 June 20 1 4. Similar to roads , drainage 
assets are managed in segments; pits and pipes being the major components . 

Consistent with roads ,  Counci l assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, cl imate and topography are consistent across each 
segment and that a segment is des igned and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials. 

CRC is based on the unit price for lhe component type. For pipes, the unit price is mu ltipl ied by the asset's length . The un it price for pipes 
is based on the construction material as well as the depth the pipe is l aid . 

Aerodrome 
Valuation of the Aerodrome was undertaken by Moloney Field Services in June 20 1 1 .  The val uation is at fair value based on replacement 
cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of the valuation . 
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Note 9.11 Fair Value Measurements {cont.) 
Other Infrastructure 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Other infrastructure is not deemed to be significant in terms of Council's Statement of Financial Position 

(d) Unobservable inputs and sensitivities
Replacement Costs
The replacement costs comprise of materials, labour and other intangible costs. Price fluctuations in any one or more of these inputs could
have a material effect on the fair value of assets measured at replacement cost. 
Useful Life
Changes in the useful life will change the amount of accumulated depreciation used to calculate cost which could result in a material 
change to the fair value. 

Asset I liability Carrying amount ( at fair value) Key unobservable inputs * Expected range Description of how changes in 
category* of inputs inputs will affect the fair value 

Investment in Waler 4,977,407 Refer to note 4.1 for a description of the valuation basis. 
Corporation 

"There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values. 

(e) Changes in recurring level 3 fair value measurements
The changes in level 3 property plant and equipment assets with recurring fair value measurements are detailed in note 6.2 (Property, 
infrastructure, plant and equipment). Heritage buildings, which are classified as level 3 are separately disclosed in note 6.2. Investment in 
water corporation, which is classified as level 3 has been separately disclosed in note 4.1 

There have been no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 measu rem en ts during the year.

[f) Valuation processes 
Council's current policy for the valuation of Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure, investment in water corporation (recurring fair 
value measurements) is set out in note 6.2. 
Non-recurring fair value measurements are made at the point of reclassification by a registered valuer. 

(g) Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed
Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are disclosed in other notes. (refer note
91) 
Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred. The fair value of borrowings
disclosed in note 91 equates to the carrying amount as the carrying amount approximates fair value (level 2).

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature
(Level 2). 

39 



King Island Council 

2017-2018 Financial Report 
Note 10.1 Related party transactions 

(i) Responsible Persons

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Names of persons holding the position of a Responsible Person at the Council at any time during the year are:

(ii) 

Councillors Mayor Duncan McFie 
Deputy Mayor Jim Cooper 
Councillor Jim Benn 
Councillor David Bowling 
Councillor Megan Chivers 
Councillor Royce Conley 
Councillor Ira Cooke (07111 /17 to current) 
Councillor Sally Haneveer 

General Manager 

Councillor David Munday 
Councillor Kirsty Russell 

Troy Brice 
Brian Barret1 
Robert Ball 

Councillor Remuneration 

2017-18 

Mayor 

Deputy Mayor 

Councflfors 

Total 

2016-17 

Mayor 

Deputy Mayor 

Councillors 

Total 

Short term employee 
benefits 

Allowances Vehicles' 

$ $ 

31,47? 
18,587 
62,840 

112,904 

Short term employee 
benefits 

Allowances 
$ 

30,987 
18,127 
61,978 

111,092 

Vehicles2 

$ 

' Olher aenelits •Trove/allowance ca!culats� al 0.74 cenls per,iiometre. 

Post employment 
benefits 

Superannuation 

$ 

Post employment 
benefits 

Superannuation 1 

$ 

Total Compensation 
AASB 124 

$ 

31.477 
18,587 
62,840 

112,904 

Total Compensation 
AASB 124 

$ 

30,987 
18,127 
61,978 

111,092 

(iii) Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Expenses' 

$ 

Expenses' 

$ 

41 

41 

2017-18 Short term employee benefits Post employment benefits 

Other 
Short-1erm Allowances Other Long• 

Numberol Incentive and Super• term Terminafion 
Remuneration band employees Salary' Payments' Vehicles' Benefits' .annuation5 Benefits' BeneHts' 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

$140 001 - $160 000 2 226,884 - 21,902 - 28,523 -

$60 OD 1 - $80 ODO 1 67,627 - 7,382 - 8,115 8,646 
$40 001 - $60 ODO 1 57,280 - - - -

$20 001 - $40 000 2 53,277 - 2,032 2,824 -

Total allowances and 
expenses section 72 

$ 

31,477 
18,587 
62,840 

112,904 

Total allowances and 
expenses section 72 

$ 

30,987 
18,127 
62,019 

111,133 

Non-
monetary 

Total 

Benefits' 

$ $ 

26,870 304,179 
(17,066) 74,704 

- 57,280
3,423 61,556 

Total 405,068 31,316 39,462 8,646 13,226 497,719 
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2018  

201 6-1 7 Snort term emolovee benefits Post employment benefits 
uuier 

Short-term Allowances Other Long• 

Number of Incentive and Super- term Termination 

Remuneration band employees Salary' Payments' Vehicles' Benefits' annuations Benefits' Benefils' 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

$1 20 001 - $ 140 000 2 21 8,754 - 1 6,627 26,521 -

$200 001 - $220 000 1 1 43,376 7 , 537 - 1 7 ,075

Total 362,130 24, 1 64 43 ,595

Non• 

monetary Total 

Benefits' 

$ $ 

1 2 ,982 274, 884 

35,790 203,777 

48,772 478,661 

' Gross Salary includes all forms of consideration paid and payable for services rendered, compensated absences during the period and salary sacrifice 
amounts. 
2 Short term incentive payments are non-recurrent payments which depend on achieving specified performance goals within specified timeframes This
is not applicable to King Island Council. 
3 Includes total cost of providing and maintaining vehicles provided for private use, including registration, insurance, fuel and other consumables,
maintenance cost and parking (including notional value of parking provided at premises that are owned or leased and fringe benefits tax). 
4 0tller benefits includes all other forms of employment allowances (excludes reimbursements such as travel, accommodation or meals) . payments in 
lieu of leave, and any other compensation paid and payable. 
5 Superannuation means the contribution to the superannuation fund of the individual. 
6 Other long-term employee benefits, including long-service leave or sabbatical leave, jubilee or other Jong-service benefits. long-term disability
benefits and, if they are not payable wholly within twelve months after the end of the period, profit-sharing, bonuses and deferred compensation, other 
non-monetary benefits (such as housing, subsisided goods or services etc) . 
7 Termination benefits include all forms of benefit vaid or accrued as a conseouence of termination.
8 Other non•monetary benefits include annuat and tong service leave movements and non-monetary benefirs (including professional memberships, 
airfares (including FBT payable) , housing, professional development stipulated in employment contract etc). 

(iv) Remuneration Principles
Executives 

The employmenl terms and conditions of senior execulives are contained in i ndividual employment contracts and prescribe total remunerat ion,
superannuation , annual and long service leave. veh icle and salary sacrifice provis ions. I n  add ition to the i r  salaries , Counci l  a lso provides non
cash benefits and contributes to post-employment superannualion plans on their behalf.

(v) Transactions with subsidiaries, associates and joint ventu res
Counci l does not hold any interests in subsidiaries ,  associates or joint ventures .

( iv) T ransactions with related parties
Du ri ng the period Council entered i nto the fol lowing transactions with related parties .

Outstanding Provisions for The expense 

Nature of the Amount of the transactions balances, including doubtful debts recognised during the 

transaction during the year commitments at Terms and condi(ions related outstanding period relating to bad
or doubtful debts dueyear end balances from related parties 

Construction Services 1 $1 7 ,754 
No outstanding 30-day terms -

balance on mvoices
Plant & Equipment 

$8 ,355 
No outstanding 30-day terms -

Sales 
1 balance on invoices 

1 Council engage the services of CC Earthscapes Pty Ltd during the financial year. This company is controlled by a related party of Cr Chivers. 

1 Council sold plant and equipment lo sole trader, Nicholas Cooper. Nicholas Cooper is a related party of Cr Cooper.

In accordance with s84(2)(b) of the Local Government Act 1993 , no in terests have been notified to the Gene ral Manager in respect of any body
or organ isatio n with which the Council has major financial deali ngs .  

(v) Loans and  guarantees to/from related parties
There were no loans in existence at balance date made, g uaranteed or secu red by the counci l to a related party.

(v i ) Commitments to/from related parties
There were no commitments in existence at balance date made, guaranteed or secu red by the counci l to a re lated party.
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(vii) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

Most of the entities and people that are related parties of council live and operate within the municipality. Therefore, on a regular basis ordinary 
citizen transactions occur between Council and its related parties. Some examples include:
- Payment of rates on a primary residence 

- Dog registration 

Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure, where they are made on the same terms and conditions available to the 
general public. 
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Note 10.2 Special committees and other activities 

King Island Youth Centre Management Committee 
Opening Balance 
Cash Receipts 
Cash Payments 
Closing Balance 

King Island Recreation Complex Committee 
Opening Balance 
Cash Receipts 
Cash Payments 
Closing Balance 

Notes to the Financial Report 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

2018 
$ 

1,513 
1 

1,514 

The King Island Recreation Complex Committee ceased as a Council committee during 201612017 

King Island Historical Society 
Opening Balance 
Cash Receipts 
Cash Payments 
Closing Balance 

26,392 
16,793 

(13,125) 
30,060 

Special committees are seen to be immaterial and therefore not included in Council's financials. 
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2017 
$ 

1,512 
1 

1,513 

3,084 
1 

(3,085) 

26,772 
25,032 

(25,412) 
26,392 
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Note 10 .3  Other significant accounting policies and pending accounti11g standards 

(a) Taxation

Council is exempt from al l forms of taxation except F ringe Benefits Tax, Payroll Tax and the Goods and Services Tax.

Goods and services fax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recogn ised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the
Austral ian Tax Office. In these ci rcumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquis ition of the asset or as part of an item of the
expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing activities,
which are disclosed as operating cash ftows.

(b) Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, Counci l reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have been
impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fai r value less costs to sell and value in
use, is compared to the assets carrying value .  Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the Statement ol
Other Comprehensive I ncome, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impa irment loss is recognised direct ly against
the revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation
surplus for that same class of asset. For non-cash generati ng assets of Council such as roads, drains, public bui ldings and the like, value in use is
represented by the deprival value of the asset approximated by its written down replacement cost.

(c) Allocation between current and non-current

In the determination of whether an asset or l ia bi l i ty is current or non-current, consideration is g iven to the time when each asset or l iabil ity is
expected to be settled. The asset or l iabi l i ty is class ified as current if it is expected to be sett led with in the next twelve months ,  being Council's
operational cycle, or if Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of a liabil ity for at least 12 months after the reporting date

(d) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a l iabi l ity at the time the guarantee is issued. The l iabil ity is i n itially measured at fair value, and if
there is material increase in the likelihood that the guarantee may have to be exercised, at the higher of the amount determined in accordance witt
AASB 137  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where
appropriate. In the determi nation of fair value, consideration is g iven to factors including the probabil ity of default by the guaranteed party and the
l ikely loss to Council in lhe event of default .

(e) Contingent assets, contingent l iabi l it ies and commitments

Contingent assets and contingent l iabi l ities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position ,  but are disclosed by way of a note and ,  if
quantifiable , are measured at nomi nal value. Contingent assets and liabi l ities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

Commitments a re not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position . Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value inclusive of the GST 
payable. 

(f) Budget

The estimated revenue and expense amounts in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income represent revised bLdget amounts and are not
aud ited .

(g) Adoption of new and amended accounting sta11dards
In the current year, Council has adopted all of the new and revised Standards and I nterpretations issued by the Austra liar Accounting Standards
Board that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current annual reporting period. These include:

(i) AASB 2016·2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative: Amendments fo AASB 107

This standard is appl icable to annual reporting periods beginn ing on o r  after 1 January 20 1 7.

Amendments to AASB 1 07 requ i re add itional disclosures to enable the reader to evaluate changes in l iabi l i ties arising from financi ng activities . 
These disclosu res include both cash flows and .non-cash changes between the opening and closing balance of the relevant l iabi l ities. Council has
included a reconci l iation of liabi l ities arising from financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows at note 9 . 3 .

The  adoption of th is Accountaing Standard will not have any  financial effect on Counci l .  
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Note 10.3 Other significant acr;c;11mting pol ic ies and pending accounting standards (cont) 

(h) Pending Accounting Standards

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 201 8 reporting periods. Council's
assessment of the impact of the relevant new standards and interpretations is set out below.

(i) AASB 9 Financial Instruments

This standard is appl icable to annual reporting periods beginn ing on or after 1 January 20 1 8.

This standard replaces the existing standard, AASB1 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measument , and revises classification ,
measurment and disclosure of fi nancial assets and l iabi l ities. It reduces the number of categories for fi nancial assets and simplifies the
measl1 rement choices . includ ing the removal of impairment testing of assets measured at fair value. Classification of financial assets is determined
by an entities buisness model for holding the particular asset and its contractual cas h  ftows .

The amortised cost model is available for debt assets meeting both a business model and cash How characteristics tests. Amortised cost is to be
used for assets with contractual terms g iving rise to principal and interest payments. Where the bussiness model is achived by both collecting the
contractual cash Hows and from sel l i ng the financial asset. it may be classified as fair value through other comprehensive income Any financial
asset not held in either of these clas ifications, or wher des ignated, will be classified as fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on financial
assets at fair value are to be recogn ised i n  profit and loss unless the asset is part of a hedging relationship or, where the financial asset is an equity
instrument not held for trading, and an i rrevocable election is made to present all movements in other comprehensive income.

When adopted, the standard requires Council to reclassify al l fi nancial assets . This i ncludes Counci l 's classification and accounting for its sign ificant
investment in TasWater which is an avai lable-for-sale financial asset. Council currently recogn ises changes in the fa ir value of its available-for-sale
assets through other comprehensive income. Under AASB9 Counci l wil l make an irrevocable election for its equity investment in TasWater as 'fair
value through other comprehensive income' and therefore the adoption of this standard will not impact the way movements in the fair value are
accounted for.

The standard also introduces a new impairment model that requires impai rment provisions to be based on expected credit losses, rather thari
incurred credit losses .

There wi l l  be no impact on Council's accounting for fi nancial l iab i l i t ies ,  as the new re<1uirements on ly affect the accounting for financial l iabi l i ties that
are designated at fair value through profit or loss and Council does not have any such l iabil ities .  The derecognition rules have been transferred from
AASB 1 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not been changed.

Counci l wi l l  apply the standard from 1 Ju ly 20 1 8  using a retrospecive approach with cumulative catch-up. This does not require Council to restate 
comparative figures , but will require a reconcil iation of changes in classification of financial assets and fi nancia l  l iabi l i ties. 

(ii) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 20 1 9.

AASB 1 5  introduces a five-step process for revenue recognifIon, with the core princi ple of the new standard being for entities to recognise revenue 
to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers i n  amounts that reflect the consideration (that is, payment) to which the entity expects to be 
entitled i n  exchange for those goods or services . 

Accounti ng pol icy changes will arise in the timing of revenue recognition, treatment of contracts costs and contracts wh ich contain a financing 
element. 

Council has analysed the new revenue recognition re<iuirements noti ng that future impacts include: 

Depending on the respective contractual terms , the new requi rements of AASB 1 5  may resu lt in a change to the timing of revenue from sales 
of goods and services such that some revenue may need to be deferred as a l iability to a later reporting period to the extent that Council has 
received cash, but has not met its associated performance obl igations, (a promise to transfer a good or service) .  

Grants received to construct non-financial assets controlled by Council wi l l be recognised as a l iabi l ity, and subsequently recognised 
progressively as revenue as Council satisfies its performance obl igations under the grant. At present, such g rants are recogn ised as revenue 
upfront. 

Other g rants presently recognised as revenue upfront may be elig ib le to be recognised as revenue progressively as 1he associated 
performance obligations are satisfied , but only if the associated performance obligations are enforceable and sufficiently specific. 
G rants that are not enforceable and/or not sufficiently specific, wil l not qual ify for deferral, and continue to be recognised as revenue as soon 
as they are controlled. Council receives several g rants for which there are no sufficiently specific performance obl igations, for example the 
Commonwealth Financial Assistance Grants . These g rants are will continue being recognised as revenue upfront assuming no change to the 
current grant arrangements. 

For Council there wil l be a s ign ificant effect in the treatment of al l grants with sufficiently specific performance obligaUons , but where the conditions 
have yet to be fulfilled at year end. Council currently presents unexpended g rant income received in note 2 .4 . Council's assessment is that the 
majority of the amounts received unexpended for the year, wi l l  be deferred as a l iabi lity under AASB1 5  and progresively recorded as income as 
performance obligations are fulfil led. 

Counci l  will apply the standard from 1 July 20 1 9  using a retrospecive approach with cumulative catch-up with an adj ustment to Accumu lated 
surpluses for the difference in accounting treatment on initial adoption. 
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Note 10.3 Other significant accounti ng policies and pending accounting standards (cont) 

(iii) AASB 1 058 /ncome of Not-for-Profit Entities 

This standard is applicable to annual reportin� periods beqinnin� on or after 1 January 20 19.
AASB 1 058 supersedes al l the income recogn ition requirements relating to councils, previously in AASB 1 004 Contributions. The timing of income
recognition under MSB 1 058 depends on whether a transaction g ives rise to a l iabil ity or other performance obl igation , or a contribution by owners ,
related to an asset (such as cash or another asset) received .

AASB 1 058 applies when Council receives volu nteer services or enters into other transactions i n  which the consideration to acquire an asset is
significantly less than the fair value of the asset, and where the asset is principally to enable Council to further its objectives. In cases where Counci l
enters into other transactions, Council recognises and measures the asset at fair value in accordance with the appl icable Austra l ian Accounting
Standard (e.g .  MSB 1 1 6  Properly, Plant and Equipment ) .

I f  the transaction is a t ransfer o f  a financial asset t o  enable Counci l t o  acqu i re or construct a recognisable non-financial asset l o  be  control led by
counci l { i .e .  an in-substance acquisition of a non-financial asset) , Council recognises a l iabi l ity for the excess of the fai r  value of the transfer over any
related amounts recognised. Council will recognise income as it satisfies its obligations under the transfer, simi larly to income recognition in relation
to performance obligations under MSB 15 as discussed above.

Where the asset acquired is leased at a "Peppercorn' rate, Council is re(luired to recognise the leased asset at its fair value, the remaining lease 
liability and the balance as income. 

AASB 1 058 also encompases non-contractual statutory income such as rates, taxes and fi nes. Council cu rrently recognises income when received. 
Under AASB 1 058, income is recognised when the taxable event has occu rred. An impact for Counci l is that prepaid rates received prior to the 
beginning of a rating period, will now be recognised as a financial l iability unti l the commencement of that rating period. The impact to Council wi l l  
be that revenue recognised when received from Rates and charges in advance as disclosed in note 2. 1 ,  wi l l  now be recorded as a liability, with 
revenue diferred unti l the commencement of the applicable rati ng period . 

AASB 1 058 requi res the recognition of Vounteer services where they would have been purchased if not donated and the fair value of those 
seervices can be reliably measured. 

Council will apply the standard from 1 July 20 1 9  using a retrospecive approach with cumulative catch-up with an adjustment to Accumu lated 
surpluses for the difference in accounti ng treatment on in itial adoption. 

( iv) AASB 16 Leases

This standard is applicable to annual reportinq periods beqinninq on or after 1 January 2019 .
AASB 1 6  introduces a s ingle lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recogn ise assets and liabi l ities for a l l  leases with a term of  more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recogn ise a right-of-use asset representing its rig ht to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments.

AASB 16 will resu lt in most of Council's operating leases being brought onto the statement of financial position . There are limited exceptions relating
to short-term leases and low-value assets which may remain off the balance sheet. Counci ls existing lease commitments are disclosed in Note 9 . 9 .

The calculation of  the  lease l iabil ity will lake into account appropriate discount rates, assumptions about the lease term, and increases in lease 
payments. A corresponding right to use assets wil l  be recognised, which will be amortised over the term of the lease. Rent expense will no longer be 
shown. The profit and loss impact of the leases wil l  be th rough amortisation and interest charges. Counci l 's current operati ng lease expend iture is 
shown at Note 3 .6 .  In the Statement of Cash Flows lease payments will be shown as cash flows from finanacing activities instead of operating 
activities. 

Lessor accounting under AASB 16 remains largely unchanged . For finance leases, the lessor recogn ises a receivable equal to the net investment in 
the lease. Lease receipts from operating leases are recognised as income either on a straight-l ine basis or another systematic basis where 
appropriate. 

Council wil l apply the standard from 1 July 20 1 9  using a retrospecive approach with cumulative catch-up with an adjustment to Accumulated 
su rpluses for the difference in accounting treatment on i nitial adoption .  

A l l  other Australian accounting standards and interpretations with future effective dates are either not applicable to Council's actJvities, or have no material impact. 
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The operating capital and competitive neutrality costs of the Council's significant business activities: 

Roads Streets and Bridges 
2018 2017 

$ $ 

Revenue 
Rates 
Reimbursements 
User Charges . 

Grants 1,492,069 1,991,274 
Other 469,589 465,180 
Total Revenue 1,492,069 2,456,454 

Expenditure 

Direct 

Employee Costs 154,242 790,281 
Materials and Contacts 494,743 1,398,571 
Interest 
Other 876 10,701 

Indirect 

Engineering & Administration 177,356 104,952 

Total Expenses 827,217 2,304,505 

Notional cost of free services received 

Capital Costs 

Depreciation and amortisation 838,926 957,779 
Opportunity cost of capital 2,379,173 2,413,427 

Total Capital Costs 3,218,099 3,371,206 

Calculated Surplus/(Deficit) 664.852 151,949 
Tax Equivalent rate 30% 30% 
Taxation equivalent 199,456 45,585 

Competitive neutrality costs 199,456 45,585 

Accounting policy 

Significant business activities 

Aerodrome 
2018 2017 

$ $ 

. 

10,885 11,559 
442,084 442,521 

. -

40,969 32,887 
493,938 486,967 

110,773 113,966 
223,694 200,948 

17,646 
90,804 86,016 

35,223 35,223 

478,140 436,153 

418.491 415,264 
636,491 655,419 

1,054,982 1,070,683 

15,798 50,814 
30% 30% 

4,739 15,244 

4.739 15,244 

Council is required to report the operating, capital and competitive neutrality costs in respect of each significant business activity 
undertaken by the Council.Council's disclosure is reconciled above. Council has determined, based upon materiality that the activities as 
defined above are considered significant business activities. Competitive neutrality costs include notional costs i.e. income tax equivalent, 
rates and loan guarantees. In preparing the information disclosed in relation to significant business activities. 
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(a) Underlying surplus or deficit
Recurrent income* less
recurrent expenditure
Underlying surplus/deficit

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

Benchmark 2018 

$ 

7,232,610 
7,660,889 

>O (428,279) 

2017 2016 2015 

$' $' $' 

6,386,634 6,030,720 6,343,058 
7,214,674 5,384,509 6,519,374 
(828,040) 646,211 (176,316) 

• Recurrent income excludes income received specifically for new or upgraded assets, physical resources received free of charge
or other income of a capital nature.

(b) Underlying surplus ratio
Underlying surplus or deficit 
Recurrent income• 

Underlying surplus ratio% 0%

(428,279) 
7,232,610 

(5.92%: 

This ratio serves as an overall measure of financial operating effectiveness. 

(cl Net financial liabilities 
Liquid assets less 
total liabilities 
Net financial liabilities 0 

7,358,718 
2,670,267 
4,688,451 

(828,040) 
6,386,634 

(12.97%) 

6,791,194 
2,285,078 
4,506,116 

646,211 
6,030,720 

10.72% 

4,699,077 
1,705,222 
2,993,855 

(176,316) 
6,343,058 

(2.78%) 

4,659,023 
2,062,909 
2,596,114 

This measure shows whether Council's tolal liabililies can be met by its liquid assets. An excess of total liabilities over liquid assets 
means that, if all liabilities fell due at once, additional revenue would be needed to fund the shortfall. 

= 

( d) Net financial liabilities ratio
Net financial liabilities 
Recurrent income• 

Net financial liabilities ratio % 0%-(50%) 

4,688,451 
7,232,610 

65% 

4,506,116 
6,386,634 

71% 

This ratio indicates the net financial obligations of Council compared to its recurrent income, 
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(e) Asset consumption ratio
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

2018 

$ 

2017 

$ 

2016 

$ 

2015 
$ 

An asset consumption ratio has been calculated in relation to each asset class required to be included in the long-term strategic asset 
management plan of Council 

Property 
Depreciated replacement cost 
Current replacement cost 

Asset consumption ratio % 

Plant & Equipment 

Depreciated replacement cost 
Current replacement cost 

Asset consumption ratio % 

Roads 
Depreciated replacement cost 
Current replacement cost 

Asset consumption ratio % 

Bridges 

Depreciated replacement cost 
Current replacement cost 

Asset consumption ratio % 

Aerodrome 

Depreciated replacement cost 

Current replacement cost 

Asset consumotion ratio % 

Drainage 

Depreciated replacement cost 
Current replacement cost 

Asset consumption ratio % 

Recreation and Community Facilities 

Depreciated replacement cost 
Current replacement cost 

Asset consumption ratio% 

Waste Management 

Depreciated replacement cost 
Current replacement cost 

Asset consumption ratio% 

40%-60% 

40%-60% 

>60% 

40%-60% 

40%-60% 

40%-60% 

40%-60% 

40%-60%

2,524,571 
3,733,219 

68% 

1,903,543 
4,533,997 

42% 

38,284,894 
69,549,029 

55% 

3,534,392 
7,627,707 

46% 

10,942,418 
18,152,393 

60% 

676,142 
2,056,894 

33% 

558,094 
880,080 

63% 

543,770 
672,452 

81% 

2,720,027 
3,942,126 

69% 

1,981,883 
4,885,279 

41% 

37,846,517 
68,430,547 

55% 

3,667,740 
7,627,706 

48% 

11,351,492 
18,142.S76 

63% 

606,665 
1,961,944 

31% 

475,357 
782,529 

61% 

3,010,882 
4,303,410 

70% 

2,165,407 
5,027,400 

43% 

37,888,708 
67,792,633 

56% 

3,799,256 
7,627,706 

50% 

11,605,384 
17,981,605 

65% 

632,137 
1,961,944 

32% 

381,619 
688,404 

55% 

359,202 __ 3_7�1,_76_2 
475,325 475,325 

76% 78% 

This ratio indicates the level of service potential available in Council's existing asset base. 

2,549,816 
3,773,432 

68% 

2,262,658 
5,495,483 

41% 

37,762,718 
66,986,538 

56% 

3,930,771 
7,627,706 

52% 

9,995,427 
15,956,384 

63% 

657,609 
1,961,944 

34% 

399,640 
688,404 

58% 

384,322 
475,325 

81% 

Council is within benchmarking range for the majority of the classes of assets which indicates that Councl's assets have sufficient 
capacity to continue to provide services to its ratepayers. 
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(f) Asset renewal funding ratio 

Notes to the Financial Report 

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 

2018 

$ 

2017 

$ 

2016 

$ 

2015 

$ 

Asset renewal funding ratios are unable to be calculated as Council is yet to adopt a long term asset management plan. This is
currently under development. 

{g) Asset sustainability ratio 

Capex on replacement/renewal of existing assets 
Annual depreciation expense 

Asset sustainability ratio% 100% 

1,487,417 
1,598,189 

93% 

937,702 

1,606,445 

58% 

1,804,263 
1,625,953 

111% 

2,485,341 
1,627,530 

153% 

This ratio calculates the extent to which Council is maintaining operating capacity through renewal of their existing asset base. 

2018 Captial Capital new Total Capital 
renewal /upgrade Expenditure 

By asset class $'000 $'000 $'000 

Total 1,487,417 466,161 1,953,578 
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